SHISSFANG

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
THEEBRAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and re-domiciled and continued in

(RASEEIMNITEMEERERNBREFENARAE)

Stock Code B&IA{X3E : 1831

" ANNUALREPORT
.';" el | I

R




Corporate Information

Financial Highlights and Summary

Chairman's Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors and Senior Management Profile

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NEER

MHERERRE

ITRBREE

EIE 5 0 B

VoA R S GHE =

GHEEARER

affeElER

EHREEHE

AHRERER

B BERRMEE

CONTENTS
5 8%

10
29
35
64
85
99
101
103
104

105

+AHAEREBERAT T _—FER



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Mr. Chen Wei Dong
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Cai Jian Quan (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhi

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

6/F, Hua Fu Mansion

No. 121 Gutian Road

Gulou District

Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 2406, 24/F,

Alliance Building,

133 Connaught Road Central,

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law:
Cheung & Choy

As to PRC law:
Beijing PH. Law Firm

As to Bermuda law:

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEN

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Co., Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Limited

STOCK CODE
01831

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.shifangholding.com
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RESULTS

Revenues

Gross profit

Operating loss

(Loss)/profit attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests

Loss per share — Basic (RMB)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total debt

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY
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For the year ended 31 December
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- T Z-hE ZE-)\F IZ—tF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETr ARETT AR&®TR ARETx
265,158 126,384 122,374 55,016 43,428
21,729 13,870 21,044 18,495 11,956
(213,310) (74,812) (121,284) (156,578) (58,999)
(187,468) (73,784) (139,165) (164,403) (56,493)
(1,396) (755) (4,385) (194) 162
(0.2029) (0.0889) (0.2028) (0.3161) (0.1560)
= ==
BEEKRAR
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- T2 B-AE IEBE-N\F IZZ—tF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTr ARETT ARETR ARETx
240,045 433,245 465,158 477,201 312,323
194,436 193,623 169,124 177,061 9,113
359,565 371,513 350,043 289,239 64,716
(125,626) 54,230 106,907 175,282 239,638
6,106 8,208 12,680 7,969
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

M R E R 2

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Gross profits margins:
(i) Overall
(i) Newspaper and vehicles advertising
(iii) Marketing, consulting and printing services

(iv) Sales of agricultural products
(v) Others
Operating margins
Net margins
Return on equity
Return on assets @
Trade receivables turnover (days)
Trade payables turnover (days)
Gearing ratio

Notes:

m Return on equity is calculated based on loss for the year divided by

total equity.

@ Return on assets is calculated based on loss for the year divided by

total assets.
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In 2021, despite the novel coronavirus outbreak had triggered
global economic recession, however, with improved epidemic
prevention and control, together with the policies stimulating the
consumption, various business activities were gradually lifted from
lockdowns, and markets and industries progressively resumed
business operation and production. The global economy began to
show signs of recovery from the impacts of the epidemic. In 2021,
China’s gross domestic product (GDP) was RMB114,366.97 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%, with an average

growth rate of 5.1% for the two years.

The overall domestic advertising market in 2021 increased by
11.2% year-on-year, and various channels showed a recovery
trend with modest improvement except for traditional outdoor
advertising. Expenses on television, radio, elevator LCD and
elevator poster advertisements continued to rise, and the expenses
on traditional outdoor advertising, newspapers, magazine went

down further.

For the film industry, as the first year after the epidemic had
become stabilised, total box office of Chinese films in 2021
reached RMB47.258 billion,
epidemic level. During the year under review, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately RMB265.2 million (2020: RMB126.4

recovering to 74% of the pre-

million) from its principal business.
RMB188.9 million (2020: RMB74.5 million).

Net loss for the year was

In recent years, the Group has been focusing on restructuring
its publishing and advertising businesses by consolidating them
with the cultural and film media businesses in the PRC. We
identify opportunities that can generate synergy with the Group's
business, so as to broaden our income sources and reduce the
reliance on printed media business that has been impacted by

external environment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IREHRESE

ACTIVELY EMBRACING NEW MEDIA
AND FURTHER ACHIEVING BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

With the development of information technology, the traditional
print media advertising market continues to be impacted, while
new media is developing rapidly and becomes increasingly
powerful, and has become an important driving force for the
rapid growth of the domestic media industry. Therefore, during
the year under review, the Group strived to increase investments
in the new media sector such as mobile media advertising to
capture the business opportunities arising from the transformation
and upgrade that combine the strength of online and offline
activities in the new media era. The mobile media advertising
business of the Company contributed RMB8.9 million to the
Group's revenue during the period, with a gross profit margin of
16.4%. At the same time, the Group has launched a smart mobile
APP that adopts blockchain technology and offers information,
e-commerce, advertising and consultancy services. We believe this
APP will help us grasping strong market demand brought by the

development of mobile Internet.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REmEERMERE E—P8R
ES ]

BECEEMER ERTFTEEREEST S
SEZINEE MEBERARARRA B
RABNEREXRERRENEEZERH o
it ZEBREBBEFEFARIREEEER
BEEMEBEFMARA > LUBIE M E
RAGZ TG TORSUARNEHK 288
FERESEBHANEMBRAARKS. 9T
B EMEXEI164% B AEFBIER
HHEEFHAPP FERAERERM BHEE
E Bl BEKABARE BHREELHE
BB REBMBRARHIEE Ko



CONTINUE EXPANDING INTEGRATED
PROJECTS AND STRENGTHENING BUSINESS
SYNERGY

The Group focuses on providing customers with value-added
services such as advertising, marketing and consulting. At the
same time, the Group actively leverages its experience and
resources in the advertising, film, culture and media industries
to develop integrated projects on the theme of film or media
by seeking locations with unique environmental elements for
developing integrated projects focusing on industry positioning,
cultural heritage, tourism features, eco-agriculture, entertainment
and community functions such as health and wellness, so as
to form synergies with the existing businesses. Moreover, the
Group will continue to endeavour to improve cost control and
resources allocation, utilise resources more effectively and improve
operational efficiency. By virtue of the Group’s existing brand
effect and customer base, our comprehensive strengths such as
cross-regional coverage and cross-media platforms will play an
important role in our transformation and development. Finally,
on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the management
team and all employees for their hard work and dedication. At
the same time, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
respectable shareholders, customers and business partners for

their long-term trust and unwavering support.

Chen Zhi
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
Hong Kong, 13 May 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETwREAD

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2021 (the “Period under Review”), despite the novel
coronavirus (the “epidemic”) outbreak had triggered global
economic recession, however, with improved epidemic
prevention and control, together with the policies stimulating
the consumption, various business activities were gradually
lifted from lockdowns, and markets and industries progressively
resumed business operation and production. The global
economy began to show signs of recovery from the impacts of
the epidemic. In 2021, China continued to maintain a global
leading position in terms of epidemic prevention and control
and economic and social development through its scientific
coordination of epidemic prevention and had successfully achieved
its principal targets and tasks set at the beginning of the year.
The contribution rate of final consumption and net exports to
economic growth throughout the year was significantly higher
than the pre-epidemic period. The industrial economy maintained
a steady bounce-back momentum, while the recovery of service
industry was subject to the greater impact and fluctuation with
differentiated structure. The impact of the epidemic on China’s
economy was temporary and ought not change the fundamentals
of China’s long-term and sound economic expansion. In 2021,
China’s gross domestic product (GDP) was RMB114,366.97
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%, with
an average growth rate of 5.1% for the two years. From the
quarterly perspective, the first quarter went up by 18.3% year-on-
year while second quarter increased by 7.9% year-on-year, third
quarter rose by 4.9% year-on-year, and fourth quarter grew by

4% year-on-year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2021 is a critical year for recovery after the epidemic, and the
advertising market experienced a sound recovery growth with
occasional epidemic disturbance. According to the continuous
advertising monitoring database of CTR, the overall domestic
advertising market in 2021 increased by 11.2% year-on-year,
and various channels showed a recovery trend with modest
improvement except for traditional outdoor advertising.
Expenses on television, radio, elevator LCD and elevator poster
advertisements continued to rise, representing a year-on-year
increase of 1.3%, 3.4%, 31.5% and 32.4%, respectively. The
video advertising expenses in cinema experienced a recovery
growth to 253.2%, and the expenses on traditional outdoor
advertising, newspapers, magazine went down further by
13.6%, 22% and 7.8% year-on-year respectively. From the
industry perspective, advertising expenditures in industries such
as pharmaceuticals, cosmetics, bathroom products and personal

supplies recorded a remarkable increase year-on-year.

In 2021, the film market in Mainland China continued to lead the
world. As the first year after the epidemic had become stabilised,
total box office of Chinese films in 2021 reached RMB47.258
billion, recovering to 74% of the pre-epidemic level. In terms
of content supply, a total of 697 films were shown for the year,
reaching historic high. The lower tier market continued to expand,
and for the first time, representing a share of approaching 40%
in third— and fourth-tier cities. Of which, the fourth-tier cities, in
particular, recovered relatively quicker after the epidemic, with

yearly movie-goers exceeded the first— and third-tier cities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETwREAD

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB265.2 million in its principal business
(2020: RMB126.4 million). Gross profit was RMB21.7 million
(2020: RMB13.9 million), and gross profit margin decreased from
17.2% in 2020 to 8.2% in 2021. Loss for the year increased to

approximately RMB188.9 million (2020: RMB74.5 million).

Newspapers and Public Vehicles Advertising

During the period, the business environment remained challenging
in the print media market as the market continued to be hit by
new online media. Together with the intense competition from
new media and the Internet, the speed of transformation of the
advertising industry has intensified, the daily circulation and the
number of printed pages of Southeast Express operated by the
Group remained unsatisfactory. The public vehicles advertising
mainly generates revenue from TV advertisements on public
vehicles. For the twelve months ended 31 December 2021,
newspapers and public vehicles advertising contributed RMB13.3
million to the Group’s revenue (2020: RMB10.2 million), with a
gross profit margin of 30.3% (2020: 45.4%).

Marketing and Consulting Services and Printing Services

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, the
Group's revenue from marketing and consulting services was
approximately RMB75.2 million, representing an increase of
36.6% as compared with 2020, while gross profit margin was
3.6%. The revenue from printing services was RMB4.2 million,
approximate to that of the corresponding period in 2020, with a

gross profit margin of 19.9%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sales of Agricultural Products

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
revenue from sales of agricultural products was approximately
RMB171.7 million (2020: RMB56.2 million), while gross profit
margin was 9.9% (2020: 12.5%). The sales of agricultural
products of the Group mainly focus on ornamental plants, which
tend to record higher sales in the second half year, and the sales
of which are generally peaked towards the end of the calendar

year.

Internet and other Services

During the Period under Review, the Group was still conducting
market survey to decide the business models of www.dnkb.com.cn
and www.duk.cn and as such, the Internet services segment has
yet to contribute any revenue to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETwREAD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue increased by 109.8% from RMB126.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB265.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to the increased
revenue from the sales of agricultural products. Revenue from
marketing and consulting services increased from RMB55.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB75.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Revenue from newspaper and
public vehicle advertising increased from RMB10.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB13.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Revenue from the sales of agricultural
products increased from RMB56.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to RMB171.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. Revenue from printing services decreased slightly
from RMB4.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to

RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by 56.7% from RMB13.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB21.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Gross profit margin decreased from
17.2% in 2020 to 8.2% in 2021, which was primarily attributable
to the increase in sales of agricultural products which generally

had lower gross profit margin.

Other income

Other income decreased from RMB2.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to RMB1.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, mainly due to the decrease in government grant

of RMB2.2 million in the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 234.3% from
RMB7.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB26.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly
due to the increased selling and marketing expenses of the sales

of agricultural products.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by 28.0% from
RMB56.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB40.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly
due to (i) decrease in amortisation of intangible assets of RMB2.3
million; (ii) decrease in foreign exchange losses from RMB3.7
million to RMB2.0 million; and (iii) decrease in net loss on disposal

of property, plant and equipment of RMB6.4 million.

Loss before income tax

As a result of (i) the provision for impairment on goodwill and
other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets; and (ii) the decrease in net change in provision for
impairment of financial and contract assets, loss before income
tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB233.2 million,
representing an increase of 150.3% as compared to loss before
income tax of RMB93.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss for the year of RMB188.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase
of 153.4% as compared to loss for the year of RMB74.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Increase in loss for the
year was mainly attributable to the increase in one-off provision
for impairment on goodwill and other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to non-controlling
interests increased from RMBO.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to RMB1.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company
As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to owners of
the Company increased from RMB73.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to RMB187.5 million for the year ended 31

December 2021.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB240.0 million (2020: RMB433.2 million) and
total borrowings and lease liabilities totalling approximately
RMB195.9 million (2020: RMB193.6 million),
gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings over total assets, of
approximately 81.6% (2020: 44.7%).

representing a

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB213.2
million (2020: RMB32.8 million),
assets of approximately RMB139.2 million (2020: RMB67.9 million)
and current liabilities of approximately RMB352.5 million (2020:

calculated from the current

RMB100.7 million), representing a current ratio of approximately
0.4 (2020: 0.7).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB9.8 million (2020: RMB14.3 million),
including restricted cash of RMB0.9 million.

Going concern

During year ended 31 December 2021,
net loss of RMB188,864,000 and had a net cash outflow from
operating activities of RMB5,427,000. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB213,244,000 and the Group had a deficit in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB125,626,000.

the Group reported a
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current borrowings
amounted to RMB187,706,000
RMB181,356,000 convertible bonds owned by the major

in total, including
shareholder in Hong Kong and bank borrowings of
RMB6,350,000, while it had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB8,851,000 only.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group failed to repay a
bank borrowing of RMB5,900,000 in full in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates of the underlying bank borrowings
agreement, and a principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest of
RMB6,000 became overdue (the “Overdue Bank Borrowing”). The
Overdue Bank Borrowings are secured by the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with a carrying value of RMB6,928,000 as at
31 December 2021.

The Group is in active negotiation with the bank in respect of the
Overdue Bank Borrowings for renewal, extension and replacement
of the relevant bank borrowings and the directors are confident

that agreements will be reached in due course.

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") outbreak that led
to a series of severe administrative control and precautionary
measures taken by governments and authorities in Mainland
China temporarily disrupted the operations of the Group's various
business and in particular the progress of the Group's tourism and
integrated development has been delayed. Management expects
that the China’s government would launch additional proactive
economic and monetary policies to stimulate its economic cycle
and is confident that the Group's operation will be recovered in
2022.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the ability of

the Group to continue as a going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In order to improve the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company have been implementing various measures as set
out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, including
disposal of properties, the commencement of commercial
operations of projects to generate income and operating
cashflows, obtaining written confirmations from the directors and
related parties, negotiating with the bank for renewal of bank
facilities, raising funds through placement of the Company’s

shares, cost-control measures, expedition in debt collection,
generating sufficient inflow from the sales of properties held for

sale and deference of discretionary capital expenditure.

The directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s projections described above and after
taking into account the reasonably possible changes in the
operation performance, believe there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group at least in the coming twelve

months to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Accordingly, the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash flows used in operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB5.4 million, primarily attributable to
the loss before income tax for the year amounted to RMB233.2
million and partially offset by non-cash items, which primarily
included (i) provision for impairment of intangible assets
amounted to RMB161.3 million, (ii) provision impairment of
property, plant and equipment of RMB8.8 million, (iii) finance
costs of RMB20.0 million; and (iv) depreciation and amortisation
of RMB8.4 million.

Cash flows used in investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash generated
from investing activities amounted to RMB13.1 million, resulted
primarily from down payment received for assets classified as held
for sale of RMB8.5 million, refunded of long term prepayment of
RMB6.2 million and offset by the payment for property, plant and
equipment of RMB1.6 million.

Cash flows generated from financing activities
For the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash used in financing
activities amounted to RMB11.7 million, mainly attributable to the

repayment of bank borrowings of RMB12.0 million.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures incurred during the year are mainly for
the purchase or construction costs related to properties, plant
and equipment. Capital expenditures were RMB1.0 million and
RMB1.6 million for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021,

respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETwREAD

Trade receivables — net
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables based on
invoice dates is set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statement.

Trade receivables increased by 28.3% from RMB5.5 million as at
31 December 2020 to RMB7.0 million as at 31 December 2021.
Such increase was mainly attributable to more revenue generated

during the year in general and particularly near year end.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
The non-current prepayments,
decreased by 74.2% from RMB80.5 million as at 31 December
2020 to RMB20.8 million as at 31 December 2021 while the

deposits and other receivables

current prepayments, deposits and other receivables increased by
440% from RMB11.5 million as at 31 December 2020 to RMB62.1
million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the reclassification
of deposits for marketing and promotion contracts of RMB52.0

million from non-current assets to current assets.

Properties held for sale
As at 31 December 2021,
approximately RMB22.8 million (2020: RMB24.3 million). The

properties held for sale amounted to

properties in the PRC were received in exchange of advertising
services to real estate developers in the PRC. The Group's
intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly, such rights
are recognised as properties held for sale upon the completion of
the advertising sales transaction if the related properties are ready

to be sold.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of the
properties with reference to their market value with the assistance
of an independent property valuer. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the management compared the carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell of the properties and considered no
further impairment provision is necessary based on the valuation
of the valuer (2020: Nil).

Trade payables

The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables based on
invoice dates is set out in Note 21. Trade payables increased
from approximately RMB11.8 million as at 31 December 2020
to RMB12.8 million as at 31 December 2021. Trade payables
turnover days decreased from 168 days for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 30 days for the year ended 31 December 2021
due to significant increase of purchases of agricultural products

for sales.

Other payables, accrued expenses and contract liabilities
The non-current other payables decreased by 100% from
RMB52.0 million as at 31 December 2020 to nil as at 31
December 2021 while the current other payables, accrued
expenses and contract liabilities increased by 156% from RMB48.3
million as at 31 December 2020 to RMB123.8 million as at 31
December 2021, mainly due to the reclassification of other
payables for marketing and promotion contracts of RMB52.0

million from non-current liabilities to current liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Indebtedness
Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including

commercial banks and certain related parties and companies.

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
obtained mortgage loans amounting to RMB15,470,000 to
finance the Group's acquisition of properties. Transaction
costs directly attributable to mortgage loans amounted
to RMB35,000. The mortgage loans were drawn on 27
February 2015 and a further prepayment of RMB15,470,000
was made by the Group to Xiamen Information Group
Ltd. for the properties. The mortgage loans are secured by
the ownership rights of the properties and the personal
guarantees of Zheng Bai Ling and Zhang Hui, a key
management and the spouse of a key management of a
subsidiary of the Group respectively. Total consideration for
the properties is RMB22,164,000, of which the initial down
payment of RMB6,694,000 was paid by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2020, the mortgage loans were classified
as current liabilities due to the related loan agreements
containing a repayment on demand clause which gives
the bank unconditional right to call the loans at any time.
The mortgage terms are 7 years and are denominated in
RMB. The mortgage loans are carried at quarterly adjusted
floating interest of 1.15 times the benchmark loan interest
as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a
similar length. The effective interest rate for the year ended
31 December 2020 was 7.40% per annum. The mortgage

loans were repaid in October 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 23 April 2019, the 3% per annum convertible bonds in
the principal amount of RMB215,750,000 were issued by
the Company to the Subscriber, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Chen Zhi, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, an
Executive Director and a shareholder of the Company. The
convertible bond has a term of 3 years. The effective interest
rate for the period is 11.5% per annum. As at 31 December
2021, the outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bond was approximately RMB170,200,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained a bank borrowing in the amount of RMB9,000,000.
The bank borrowing was drawn on 25 September 2020. The
balance is secured by the ownership right of the Group’s
properties in Xiamen, carries an interest rate at 3.85% per
annum with a term of 1 year. The balance is denominated in

RMB. The bank borrowing was repaid in October 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
renewed a revolving bank borrowing facility in the amount
of RMB5,900,000. The revolving bank borrowings were
drawn in March 2021. The bank borrowings carry an interest
rate at 4.0% per annum with a term of 1 year. The balance
is denominated in RMB.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group failed to
repay the bank in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates, including principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest of
RMB6,000. The bank borrowings are secured by the Group's
property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of
RMB6,928,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(e) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
obtained a revolving bank borrowing in the amount of
RMB600,000. The revolving bank borrowing was drawn on 8
June 2021. The balance carries an interest rate at 9.22% per

annum with a term of 1 year and is denominated in RMB.

(f)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
successfully obtained a borrowing facility of RMB20,000,000
from a company wholly-owned by the major shareholder on
1 August 2021 and RMB1,500,000 has been drawn on 16
August 2021. The borrowing will be repayable in two years

from the date of drawdown with an interest rate of 5%.

Gearing ratio, being the proportion of the Group’s total
borrowings to total assets, increased from 44.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to 81.6% for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Commitments
(a) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
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cancellable operating leases are as follows: HEETH -
2021 2020
—S_—fF T F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF T
(Audited) (Audited)
(RE%) (& 1Z)
Not later than 1 year —E LT 1,253 1,205
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FEMERAFUT 5,536 5,323
More than five years EEE = 1,466
6,789 7,994
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(b) Capital commitments (b) BAKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of REREHEREBINEXRERABENE
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as REABEZUWT :
follows:
2021 2020
—E_—F TZF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT
(Audited) (Audited)
(BEZ) (&%)
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 4,266 4,266
Contingent liabilities HERR
The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent AEERBREEGAEREI7HREE -HE

Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine when should
contingent liabilities be recognised, which requires significant

judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible obligation
has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed by future events
outside the Group's control, or when it is not possible to calculate
the amount. Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact on the

Group's financial position.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 213 full-time employees
(2020: 261). Total staff costs including directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2021 were RMB27.1 million (2020:
RMB31.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETwREAD

The remuneration of the directors is evaluated by the
remuneration committee, which also makes recommendations to
the Board. In addition, the remuneration committee reviews the
performance, and determines the remuneration structure, of the

Group's senior management.

The Company operates an employee share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to incentivise or reward eligible individuals
who provide services to the Company for their contributions and
their continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Company,
and for other purposes as the Board may approve from time to
time. The employee share option scheme lapsed in November
2020.

PROSPECTS

Since 2021, under the normalised epidemic prevention and control

situation, the domestic economy has, in general, demonstrated
a positive recovery trend. The domestic economy will continue
to recuperate steadily with an unimpeded cycle of supply and
demand, adjusted and optimised economic structure, continuously
strengthened the momentum for innovation and fully explored
the potential of the domestic market. With the remarkable
achievements of epidemic prevention and control and the recovery
of household income, the China economy as a whole maintained a
recovery trend, and consumption continued to improve. This year
is the beginning of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The government has
clearly put forward the goals of expanding domestic demand and
optimising consumption market. The contribution of consumption
to China’s economic growth will be significantly improved, the
consumption structure of residents will continue to upgrade, the
integration of online and offline consumption will accelerate,
and the innovation in new business forms and new models will

develop in a healthier and more sustainable way.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the other hand, the development of domestic cultural industry
continues to receive national focus. With the introduction of a
number of policies that are conducive to the development of
the cultural media industry, the film and television industry will
enter a golden stage that benefits all parties and promote China
from a big movie country to a powerful regime. The tremendous
consumption potential and the rapid development of digital
innovation technology are expected to push China’s film and

television industry to new heights.

Going forward, these positive factors are expected to drive
the Group to continue to develop its existing businesses
of advertising, marketing and consulting, and agricultural
products. At the same time, the Group will continue to focus
on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses by
consolidating with cultural and film media businesses in PRC, so
as to broaden the long-term income sources of the Group. The
Group will more actively leverage its experience and resources
in the advertising, film, culture and media industries to develop
integrated projects on the theme of film or media, and develop
these projects focusing on industry positioning, cultural heritage,
tourism features, eco-agriculture, entertainment and community
functions such as health and wellness, so as to form synergies
with the existing businesses. In addition, the Group will continue
to strive to identify suitable industry partners and investment or
cooperation projects to capture business opportunities which form
synergy with our existing businesses, as well as the transformation
and upgrade that combine the strength of online and offline

activities in the new media era.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETwREAD

COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") outbreak that led
to a series of severe administrative control and precautionary
measures taken by governments and authorities in Mainland
China temporarily disrupted the operations of the Group's various
business and in particular the progress of the Group’s tourism and
integrated development has been delayed. Management expects
that the China’s government would launch additional proactive
economic and monetary policies to stimulate its economic cycle

and is confident that the Group’s operation will recover in 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 56, is an executive Director. He is a qualified
accountant as conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen
was a cadre of the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to
1989 (during which he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988
to pursue his studies at Fujian Radio and Television University),
deputy section chief of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology
Development Area Tax Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and
subsequently the section chief from 1993 to 2002. He joined our
Group in 2003 and pioneered our distinctive business model of
cooperating with newspaper partners to provide integrated print
media services to advertisers, undertook the main decision-making
role in the management of our overall operations and oversaw
the strategic development of our Group. He was appointed as the
chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director of our
Company on 9 December 2009, resigned as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 29 January 2016 and resigned as the
chairman of the Company on 25 February 2016. On 9 October
2019, Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chen has accumulated
more than ten years of relevant experience from developing the
business of our Group and possesses a deep understanding of the
PRC print media and advertising industries. Mr. Chen graduated
from Fujian Radio and Television University in 1988 with a
diploma in financial economics. Mr. Chen is one of our controlling
shareholders. He is also a director of TopBig International
Development Limited (“TopBig International”). Mr. Chen is
the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive Director of the

Company.
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Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 46, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by the
Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan Tian
Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance director
of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd from 1997 to
1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang Investment Co.
Ltd. (“Fujian ShiFang”) from 1998 to 2000. He joined our Group
in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian ShiFang until 2008
when he became the head of finance of Olympia Media, and,
subsequently, vice president of finance of China TopReach Inc.
in 2009, and was appointed as Director of our Company on 20
December 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio and Television
University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience from his
work with the overall financial operations of our Group and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group on 9 June
2014. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (online education) in

financial management in January 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chen Wei Dong, aged 51, is a non-executive Director. He
was appointed as our Director on 1 April 2015. He is currently
served as the managing director of Xiamen Siruite Business
Ltd. (BPIETRAS BB EABRAT),

with effective since January 1 2014. From January 2010 to

Consulting Co., a position
October 2017, he served as the managing director of Shenzhen
China Science & Kingwin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. He served as
the deputy director of business of Shenzhen China Science &
Merchants Capital Management Group Co., Ltd., from January
2003 to December 2009. From March 1996 to December 2012,
Mr. Chen held the position as an assistant general manager of &
FIZERI B 4E B BR/A B (Xiamen Huamin Packaging Co., Ltd.). From
December 2013 to November 2018, He has served as the general
manager of China Science & Kingwin Investment Management
Limited. In addition, he also had approximately six years of
experience working in the Local Taxation Bureau of Pingyu County,
Henan Province. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor’s degree from the
College of Online Education (now known as College of Continuing
Education) of the Xiamen University in China in 2006, and has
been enrolled in the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme of School of Management of the Xiamen University

since September 2009.
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Ms. Chen Min, aged 51, is a non-executive Director. She
graduated from the Faculty of Arts, Fujian Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in arts in June 1993 and a master’'s degree
in arts specialising in contemporary Chinese drama in June 2002.
She also obtained a doctorate degree in arts specialising in
theatrical aesthetics from the Central Academy of Drama in June
2006. Ms. Chen had taken up various academic teaching posts
at the College of Chinese Language and Literature Fujian Normal
University between September 1993 and May 2007 and has been
an associate professor of drama literature at the Central Academy
of Drama since May 2007. Ms. Chen has also served as a secretary
and a member of council of the China Branch of The International
Association of Theatre Critics and a member of the expert panel
of academic degrees and graduate education of the Ministry of
Education of the PRC since May 2007. She was appointed as our
Director on 20 December 2011. Ms. Chen is the sister of Mr. Chen

Zhi, an executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 74, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010,
and is a qualified senior economist as conferred by the Fujian
Provincial Department of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as
the chairman of the Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990.
He was engaged in the newspaper industry in the PRC and held
several positions including the deputy bureau chief and editorial
board member of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general
manager, senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary
of the Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In
addition, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman, and later chairman,
of the Fujian Province Newspaper Industry Association during
the same periods, before retiring in 2008. He graduated from
Fujian Provincial Party School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma
in politics. Mr. Zhou has extensive print media experience and
expertise with particular knowledge of the Fujian newspaper

industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry (“Mr. Wong”), aged 52, is an
independent non-executive Director. He was appointed as our
Director on 8 November 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as
the independent non-executive director of Helens International
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 9869) since 30 August
2021. On 18 February 2022, Mr. Wong was also appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Meihua International
Medical Technologies Co., Ltd., (stock ticker: MHUA), a Nasdaq
listed company. Mr. Wong is also serving as the independent
non-executive director for various listed companies including TD
Holdings, Inc (stock ticker: GLG), a Nasdaq listed company, Raffles
1376),
Stock Exchange listed company, since 27 April 2021 and 30 March

2020.

Interiors Limited (stock code: a Hong Kong Mainboard

Mr. Wong has more than 27 years of experience in finance,
accounting, internal controls and corporate governance in the
United States, Singapore, China and Hong Kong. Prior to that,
Mr. Wong was the CFO of a Nasdaq listed Company, Meten
EdtechX Group Ltd (stock ticker: METX) during May 2020 to

March 2021.

Mr. Wong was also the CFO and senior finance executives of
various company including being the CFO of the Frontier Services
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0500) and the CFO of Beijing Oriental
Yuhong Waterproof Technology Co., Ltd., the leading waterproof
materials manufacturer in China and a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 2271). Mr. Wong has been
helping a number of companies listed in oversea in the United

States and Hong Kong stock exchanges.
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Mr. Wong began his career in an international accounting firm
and moved along in audit fields by taking some senior positions
both in internal and external audits including being a senior
manager and a manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers, Beijing office
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong, respectively. Mr. Wong
graduated from City University of Hong Kong in 1993 with a
bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in Electronic Commerce from The Open University of
Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011.
He graduated from the Anhui University of Finance Economics
with a bachelor’s degree in financial accounting in July 1984. Mr.
Cai was a finance manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Baihuo Headquarters Watches and Glasses Branch between July
1984 and June 1992. He was the general manager of the sales
department of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between
June 1992 and June 2002. He has also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd.

since September 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Ching Yi, aged 47,

is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

is our company secretary. She

Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 20 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary of
Xinjiang Tianye Water Saving Irrigation System Company Limited
(stock code: 840), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan joined our Group in August 2010.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of ShiFang Holding Limited (the
“Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”). The Group has been

“Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the

focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses
by consolidating with cultural media and film media businesses in

PRC, and diversifying into tourism and integrated developments.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021

are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on pages 101 to 102.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of

this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Financial
Highlights and Summary” section on pages 5 to 6 of this annual

report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 17
June 2022 to 21 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. To determine eligibility
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road

East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 June 2022.

Upon the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on 10 April
2019 (Hong Kong time), the board lot size for trading in the
Shares will be changed from 1,000 Existing Shares to 10,000 New

Shares each.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company conducted an equity fund raising involving
the issuance of 151,519,806 Shares, raising net proceeds of
approximately HK$15.15 million (the “Net Proceeds”) which was
intended to be utilized for replenishing the working capital of
the Group and meeting its operational overheads, expenses and
liabilities when they fall due. As at 31 December 2021, all such
Net Proceeds were fully utilized for general working capital of the
Group as intended, including salaries and emoluments and rental

expenses.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year of 2021, the Group had acquired property, plant

and equipment of approximately RMB1.6 million.
Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group during the year of 2021 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association or the bye-laws of the Company (the “Articles” or the
"Bye-laws"), or the laws of the Cayman Islands or Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has no reserve available

for distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations have been made by the Group

during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2021, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 53% of
the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 25% of the Group's total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2021 attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 70% of
the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 27% of the Group's

total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in

the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group’s establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group has complied, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Zhi, Chairman and chief executive officer
(appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan
(appointed on 20 December 20711)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Chen Wei Dong
(appointed on 1 April 2015)
Ms. Chen Min
(appointed on 20 December 20711)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Cai Jian Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 34.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, and Mr. Cai Jian Quan a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors

are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than six
months’ notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for
non-executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the independent non-executive Director has been
appointed by the Company for a term of three years and shall be
terminable by either party by giving not less than one month prior

notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 41 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2021 were within

the following bands:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save and except the Convertible Bonds held by TopBig

International (a wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi), no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS SUBSCRIPTION

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International
Development Limited (“TopBig International”), a wholly
owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of

HK$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.
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Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into up to 1,041,666,666 shares (on
the basis of consolidated shares after the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective).

The Convertible Bonds and the new Shares to be issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds (The “Conversion Shares”)
shall be allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
specific mandate granted by the independent shareholders of the
Company to the Directors at an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 8 March 2019.

On 27 July 2021, the convertible bonds with carrying amount of
RMB5,888,000 were converted based on the principal amount of
HK$8,237,000 (equivalent to RMB7,108,000) at the conversion
price of HK$0.24. As a result, 34,320,000 new shares were issued
and allotted.

On 22 April 2022, the convertible bonds in the amount of
RMB181,536,000 was matured. Upon its maturity, the convertible
bond holder, a company wholly-owned by the major shareholder
entered into a loan agreement of the same amount with the
Group which is due for repayment in two years from the date of

the agreement at an interest rate of 3% per annum.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the
“Share(s)") of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:

EENRMKRERROOER K
oy

RIBZ—F+"RA=+—H &F1XEx2
B HAREOEE (E&REBHFKPEHRGHEXV
) RAERERERS (TR71) PEATEN
RBEFRAEIFRGIBI2REATEAFEN
EfM WRBELHHETAZEZTETESTR
ZHRETRENEEART KB ANED
FoXkBEIIIT

(i) Long position in the Company (i) REXTHNEFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
L5
EEps 81y HEEtE R1n&E B4 BE S
Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation 1,083,265,340 119.16%
and beneficial owner (Note 1)
RS b REREGEENEGZRETRMAS (MF5E1)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan Beneficial Owner 223,049 0.02%
ENR e BEmfiEE
Notes: PEE -

(1) Mr. Chen Zhi (an executive director of the Company)
was deemed to be interested in 1,083,265,340 Shares
and underlying Shares, comprising (i) 1,758,164 Shares
directly held by him; (ii) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig
International Development Limited (“TopBig International”),
a controlled corporation which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen
Zhi; and (iii) 856,066,666 underlying Shares attributable to
the conversion right attaching to convertible bonds issued by

the Company held by TopBig International.
(2) The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of

909,118,836 issued Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
W g B5 EEHE BRHOEE HEEBOESLT
TopBig International Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 1,081,507,176 118.96%
TR BEmfBAE (ME1)
Shi Jianxiang Beneficial Owner 46,712,500 5.14%
Jiif=cd BEmfBES
Forever Joy Investments Limited  Beneficial owner (Note 2) 82,307,493 9.05%
Forever Joy Investments Limited BE@mFrAEHE FI:E2)
Victory Color International Beneficial owner (Note 3) 75,759,903 8.33%

Investment Limited

Victory Color International BmfBE (f5E3)

Investment Limited
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45



46

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERT

Notes:

(1) TopBig International is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Mr.
Chen Zhi, an executive Director. TopBig International was deemed
to be interested in 1,081,507,176 Shares and underlying Shares,
comprising (i) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig International; and
(ii) 856,066,666 underlying Shares attributable to the conversion right
attaching to convertible bonds issued by the Company held by TopBig

International..

(2) Based on disclosure of interest filings, Forever Joy Investments Ltd. is a
controlled corporation 90% owned by Shenzhen Energy Gaofei Fund
Management Co., Ltd which is 70% owned by Mr. Xu Dan.

(3) Based on disclosure of interest filings, Victory Color International
Investment Ltd. is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Ms. Wu

Yufang.

(4) The percentage of interests are calculated on the basis of
909,118,836 issued Shares of the Company as at 30 June 2021.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2021.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
which will be regarded as continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and subject to the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms below has the same meanings as those defined

in the Prospectus.
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The Structure Contracts

Background

Fuzhou ShiFangCe Culture Media Co., Ltd. (“Original WFOE"),
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to 24 December 2015, entered into (a) structured contracts
(the “Internet Structured Contracts”) to enable the Group to
capture the economic benefits of and obtain the effective control
over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Internet Opco” or “Beijing BaiChuanDuKe"”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Internet Opco Group”); and (b) structured
contracts (the “Publishing Structured Contracts”) to enable
the Group to capture the economic benefits of and obtain the
effective control over Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication
Co., Ltd ("Publishing Opco” or “Beijing HongXinTu”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively, the “Publishing Opco Group”).

Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign
Investment jointly promulgated by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC and the Ministry of Commerce
of the PRC, foreign investors are (i) prohibited from investing in
news websites and online publication services; and (ii) restricted
from investing in more than 50% controlling stake in value-
added telecommunication and printing of publications. At the
time of the entering into of the Internet Structured Contracts
and the Publishing Structured Contracts, the Company could
not directly acquire the equity interest in Internet Opco and the
controlling equity interest in Publishing Opco. Therefore, the
Company entered into the Internet Structured Contracts and the
Publishing Structured Contracts to capture the economic benefits
of and obtain the effective control over the Internet Opco and the

Publishing Opco.
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On 17 December 2015, in anticipation of the imminent disposal
of Original WFOE by the Group to an independent third party,
the Internet Structured Contracts were novated from Original
WFOE to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. (“New WFOE" or
“Fuzhou DingCe"”). With the disposal by the Group of its equity
interests in Original WFOE, the Group ceased to be interested in
the Publishing Structured Contracts or the Publishing Opco Group.
With the novation of the Internet Structured Contracts to New
WFQOE, the Group continues to consolidate the financial results of
the Internet Opco Group through the contractual arrangements

under the Internet Structured Contracts.

Internet Opco and Internet Opco Shareholders

Internet Opco is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC with a registered capital of RMB1 million
and principally engaged in value-added telecommunication
business, news websites, online publication services and printing
of publications. Internet Opco Group holds a Permit for Internet
Publication (B B#8 H AR 5F 7] 5%), an Operation Permit for Value-
added Telecommunication Business (32 1{& {5 ¥ 7548 = 57 0] 5%)
and an Operation Permit for News Publication Printing (¥ & & bz
YIENRI AR & 5o 58) .

The registered capital of Internet Opco is registered as to 60%
in the name of Zheng Bo Ling (“Zheng”) and 40% in the name
of Xu Kai Ning (“Xu”, and together with Zheng, collectively the

“Internet Opco Shareholders”).
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Reasons for the entering into of the Internet Structured
Contracts

The principal reasons for the entering into of the Internet
Structured Contracts were (a) to establish a contractual position
which allows the economic benefits of the businesses and
operations of the Internet Opco Group to flow to the Group; (b)
through the control of the right of nomination of directors of
Internet Opco, to monitor, supervise and effectively control the
business, operations and financial policies of the Internet Opco
Group which in turn ensure due implementation of the Internet
Structured Contracts; (c) to prevent any possible leakage of assets
to the Internet Opco Shareholders; and (d) to enable the Group to
acquire the equity interest of the Internet Opco at an agreed price,
which was fixed as a matter of relatively nominal sums and being

the lowest prices permissible under PRC law.

Save for the foreign investment restrictions described above, the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts

are not related to any other regulations or requirements.

Key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts
In the summary table below, we set out the current status and the

key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts:

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: ZZ—RF+=“8++tH

Loan Agreement

it #
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Parties: New Wfoe (as lender), Zheng and Xu (as borrowers)

SIS LASNEBERE (EREMA) » BREF (FRERA)

Loan sum: RMB600,000 (for Zheng) and RMB400,000 (for Xu)
B - AR ®600,0007T (8F) K AR%400,0007T (5F)

Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated

by notice by New Wfoe

FH 105 BRI EBELERELBNR L SHEDERERCE
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Equity Pledge
Agreement

RREE R0

No early repayment: Each of Zheng and Xu is not permitted to repay any loan without prior

written consent of New Wfoe.

TRREEEM  BRAUATEREHII BBECXRAETARE TEEENER-

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: ZZ—HF+="8++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as pledgors), New Wfoe (as pledgee), Internet Opco
TR BT (ERERAN) N EBEELE (FRARAN)  EHMAEEAT

Pledged assets: 60% equity interest in Internet Opco (by Zheng), 40% equity interest in
Internet Opco (by Xu)
BIREE OHMEENTE60%KE (BEER)  OHMAEELBE40%K#E (BFEH)

Guaranteed obligations: To guarantee the repayment of the loans under the Loan Agreement

and the payment of the service fees under the Service Agreement.

BERET EREEERVE THNERAIUIRBHE THRFE -

Dividends: Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, New Wfoe is entitled to all of the
benefits arising from the pledged equity interests including dividends.

RE  AEREERBR MW EBEECEARINSEMECERREESNN D (BER
/%\> °©
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Voting Right Proxy
Agreement

BREEARZEHE

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EERT

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: —F—HF+"-8B++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as appointers), New Wfoe (as appointee), Internet Opco

IR B (FREREN W ERELE (FREREAN  EMEEELT

Power granted: Each of Zheng and Xu granted to New Wfoe and its designee(s) the power to
exercise all relevant voting rights in Internet Opco including but not limited to those relating
to: (i) the amendment of company constitution; (ii) the appointment, election or dismissal
of the directors, supervisors or senior management; (iii) the transfer or disposal of all or part
of the equity interest in Internet Opco; (iv) the increase or reduction of capital, other capital
reorganization, dissolution or liquidation of Internet Opco: and (v) the right to inspect all
documents and information of Internet Opco.

FRE#ES) BERAZRERAMIMESBECEREEREREITHREMASELSFMAHERAKR
RHEMNES BREAERALTREMRARE ((METRRNER (NEE - ERUMRERES
RENSREERE (INVEENEELHASELBIFMA IR ;(iv)I8 08¢ H R B B4
SERTNES HitRAEH BHEUEE ; RVEREBMBEERASMA X RER
HER]

Restriction on equity transfer: None of Zheng nor Xu may transfer all or any part of their
equity interest in Internet Opco without the prior written consent of New Wfoe.
IREEZERG  BRAOGFTEEREHIIBECERFAETERAE TEERENEMAE
BERINEMRIEME D RE-
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Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreement
BREERBEERZE

Service Agreement

AR 75 17 5

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: —ZE—HF+="8++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as grantors), New Wfoe (as grantee), Internet Opco

SIA7T I BRET (FRREN CHIINERELE (FRERAN  EREEERHT

Option: Each of Zheng and Xu irrevocably granted to New Wfoe or its designee(s) an
exclusive option to purchase, at any time if and when permitted under PRC laws, all or part
of their equity interests in Internet Opco at the agreed price, being the higher of (i) RMB1
million; and (ii) the lowest price permissible under PRC laws.

EER  FLRHFKETUHEMEMIIEEECENEIEREREBEEZBEE > LU H
Bl R AFFRVEREREANRBEESE BIOWARBIBE T ; R()PEDERE T AFFHNREER
MEPNRSE) BERSFNEKAEEATNE I NEREDRKRE-

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: —E—HF+"-8B++tH

Parties: New Wfoe (as consultant) and Internet Opco (as appointer)

I SN EEE R (FRER) REMMAEERT ((FRZEEN)
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Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated
by notice by New Wfoe.
FH 105 RIEWMMINEBE CEZELBANK L SRIBEEHRERE-

Scope of services: New Wfoe agreed to provide to Internet Opco consulting services including
(i) market research; (ii) business development and market consultation; (iii) consulting services
in respect of labor matters; (iv) construction and maintenance of information networks and

network security; (v) technical support for software and technology; and (vi) other services in

relation to its business operations.
IRFFHEE : FMIMEEECERBEREHESE
BRRMSES (i)B S HHNEARE

ANEHRMAMIRT > BEOTHIHME ;(1)FH
ERMAEEEMERRPEERE (R KRR

(i)
KRk Ry EBMAEEE QR EFLEENE MRS -

Service fees: The service fees are according to the nature of the service content and time

spent based on market price.

BBE  REERRBRBASHERPMERBKRTESE

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

The Internet Structured Contract has not been unwound up
to the date of this report. The Company does not intend to
unwind any Internet Structured Contract unless and until the
foreign investment restriction relating to ownership of the equity
interest in Internet Opcos is lifted. When the foreign investment
restriction is lifted, the Company intends to exercise its exclusive
purchase right under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement
to acquire the entire equity interest in Internet Opco, so that
the Company can control the Internet Opco Group through the
direct shareholding relationship rather than through the Internet

Structured Contracts.

BIHREBEY

BEAKRSTAH ERMERBEHOLRKE
H-BRIFREEROHRAEEATDRENE
ERAEMBIINERERBWEE SRIEQ
AEEHHEEMERBEN -HEIIBKRE
REREE 2R ARTRENRBRIESE
BERWZ THBEREERER WEEH
MEEARNEERE  REAATENS
BEEFREGMIIFEMERBSNEGE
BMEEEATER-
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Accounting policies and financial information

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of the Company, its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary. Fuzhou
DingCe (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Internet Structured Contracts with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
whereby Fuzhou DingCe provides consulting services to Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe and is entitled to (1) receive a substantial portion
of the economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe; (2) exercise
effective control over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an
exclusive option to purchase all or part of the equity interests
in Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws. By virtue of the contractual arrangements under
the Internet Structured Contracts, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe is a
structured entity and deemed as a subsidiary of the Company
under the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial

statements”.

When assessing whether to combine a structured entity, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including whether (1) the
activities of the structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business needs so that the
Group obtains the benefits from the structured entity’s operations,
(2) the Group has decision-making powers to obtain the majority
of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains the majority of the benefits
of the activities of the structured entity, and (4) the Group retains
the majority of the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities. The Group
consolidates a structured entity if an assessment of the relevant
factors indicates that it controls the structured entity. Based on the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts,
the Company consolidated the results, assets and liabilities of
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.
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PRC laws strictly prohibits foreign investment in, and ownership
of, companies engaging in news websites and online publication
services, and place significant restrictions on foreign investment
in, and ownership of, companies engaging in the value-added
telecommunication business (Chinese parties as controlling
shareholders) and printing of publications (Chinese parties as
controlling shareholders). The Company is considered as a foreign-
invested enterprise, and is required to comply with the PRC laws
and regulations applicable to foreign-invested enterprises. Due
to such restrictions, the Company are not permitted to have
and does not have direct ownership of any interest in Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe as Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, together with its
subsidiaries, holds a Permit for Internet Publication (B B#48 kR
FFP]EE), an Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (J& (B B (5 ¥ #5548 = 5T 0] 5%) and an Operation Permit for
News Publication Printing (BT H AR EDRI &L & 55 A1 5%) . Instead,
the Company conducts the above operations in China principally
through contractual arrangements among its subsidiary Fuzhou
DingCe on the one hand, and Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its
shareholders, on the other. These contractual arrangements permit
the financial results of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to be consolidated
with and effectively all of the economic benefits of its business to
be transferred to Fuzhou DingCe. The contractual arrangement is
not related to any regulations other than the restriction on foreign

investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated
from the printing and online services businesses through Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe amounted to RMB4.2 million and nil (2020:
RMB4.1 million and nil) respectively, which accounted for 1.6%
and 0% of total revenue (2020: 3.3% and 0%) of the total
revenue; and the assets of Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant
businesses amounted to RMB16.0 million (2020: RMB28.7
million). As Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses
have not contributed any significant profit to the Group in the
past, Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses were
insignificant to the Group respectively, of total revenue. The
Company relied on and expects to continue to rely on contractual
arrangements with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders to
operate the printing and online services business components in
China. The PRC legal advisor has advised the Company that the
contractual arrangements are in compliance with and enforceable
under the relevant PRC laws. However, there exist uncertainties
regarding the interpretation and application of PRC laws and
regulations regarding the performance and enforcement of such
contractual arrangements. As such, there can be no assurance
that the relevant PRC regulatory authorities will not, in the future,
determine that the contractual arrangements are in breach of
applicable PRC laws. If the contractual arrangements are found
to be in breach of any existing or future PRC laws, the relevant
PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such violations, including revoking the business and
operating licenses held by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, restricting or
prohibiting any transactions between the Company and Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, imposing penalties or other requirements with
which the Company may not be able to comply, or requiring
the Company to restructure the relevant ownership, control or
operating structure of the Company or its business. The imposition
of any of these penalties or requirements could result in a material
and adverse effect on its business, and could even result in us
being required to cease the printing and online services businesses

completely.
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In addition to the possibility of administrative penalties or other
requirements being imposed upon us due to the relationships
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders, the Company
may not be able to effectively enforce such contractual
relationships in a cost-effective manner or at all. Under the current
contractual arrangements, if Beijing BaiChuanDuKe or any of
their shareholders fails to perform their respective obligations
under these contractual arrangements, or are required to incur
substantial costs to do so, the Company may be forced to incur
substantial costs and resources to enforce such arrangements
or to rely on PRC law to obtain remedies, including specific
performance or damages, and we may not be successful in
obtaining such remedies or obtaining such remedies might be cost
prohibitive. In the event the Company is unable to enforce these
contractual arrangements, its business, financial condition and

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. and Guizhou ShiFang Printing
Co., Ltd, which are subsidiaries of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently hold Operation Permits for News Publication Printing G&f
S ) bl 40 BN R 48 & 5 T 58)
& Technology Co., Ltd.,
currently holds a Permit for Internet Publication (& B 48t A 5F 7]
£8)and a Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (BB B E X H K E T AI8) for the operation of www.
duk.cn. Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding
SEXES
by NDRC and MOFCOM, news websites and online publication

Xiamen DuKe Information Science

a subsidiary of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,

Foreign Investment (JpiE R & B %) jointly promulgated
services are classified as industries in which foreign investors are
prohibited from investing, and value-added telecommunication
business (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) and printing
of publications (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) is
classified as an industry in which foreign investors are restricted
from investing. These views have been confirmed by our PRC legal

advisor.
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The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's financial results are consolidated into
the Company’s financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing
connected transactions.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, in relation to the transactions
regarding Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, the Company has applied
for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict
compliance with the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval, annual cap and agreements with fixed
term of no more than three years requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long as the

Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
In accordance with the relevant Structured Contracts, no dividends

or other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to

their shareholders.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

Structure Contracts and the above continuing connected

transactions.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive

Directors:

(i)

(iii)

the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that
the revenue generated by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
subsidiaries of the Company have been mainly retained by

the Group;

the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
is no available comparison, on terms that are no less
favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent

third parties;

no dividends or other distributions have been made by
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to their shareholders; and
any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
Company during the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Company are
concerned and in the interests of our shareholders as a

whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has reported the results and their work
to the Board, confirming that the transaction has received the
approval of the Directors, has been entered into in accordance
with the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to its

Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International (a
wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% Convertible Bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000). The subscription was completed on 23 April

2019.

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.
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Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into up to 1,041,666,666 shares (on
the basis of consolidated shares after the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective).

The gross and net proceeds from the subscription was
approximately HK$250 million and HK$245 million respectively.
At the time of subscription, it was the intention of the Company
to apply the net proceeds from the subscription as to: (a)
approximately HK$104 million for repaying the principal and
accrued interest on the HK$100 million loan facility previously
granted by TopBig International; (b) approximately HK$107.1
million for early redemption of the promissory notes issued as
consideration for the Supreme Glory acquisition and the accrued
interest thereon; and (c) approximately HK$33.9 million for the
Group's general expenses such as salaries, rental expenses and
professional fees. All proceeds from the subscription were utilized

as intended during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Convertible Bonds and the new Shares to be issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds shall be allotted and issued
by the Company pursuant to the specific mandate granted by the
independent shareholders of the Company to the Directors at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 8 March
2019.
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Conversion of convertible bonds

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.24 per Share, 185,600,000
Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) were allotted and issued by the
Company to TopBig International on 21 May 2019 (the “Partial
Conversion”).. As a result of the Partial Conversion, the issued
share capital of the Company has increased from 571,999,030
Shares to 757,599,030 Shares. The Conversion Shares rank
pari passu with all the existing Shares in issue as at the date of
allotment and among themselves in all respects. The 185,600,000
Conversion Shares represent: (a) approximately 32.45% of the
issued share capital immediately before the Partial Conversion;
and (b) approximately 24.50% of the issued share capital as

enlarged by the Partial Conversion.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDER

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner
while balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are
encouraged to give their opinions regarding the environmental,

social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with

safety working environments to employees.
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The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is available
on the Company’s website (www.shifangholding.com) and on the

website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Zhi

Executive Director (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Hong Kong
13 May 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor

confidence.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code

provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Apart from the corporate governance aspect, which will be further
discussed in this report below, the Company has prepared and
published its first environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which sets out
information regarding the year from 1 January to 31 December
2021,

shifangholding.com) and on the website of the Stock Exchange

which is available on the Company’s website (www.
(www.hkexnews.hk).
Set out below the corporate governance principles and the

practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review,
the position of chairman was vacated before 9 October 2019,
while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of chairman and CEO and/
or the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken, and that either the
overlap of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship
should not impair the balance of power and authority between

the Board and the management.

THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company's overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

At the date of this report, the Board comprises 7 Directors,
of which two are executive Directors, two are non-executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The
Composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having extensive knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the business operations and development of the Group. The
biographies of all Directors are set out on pages 29 to 34 of this
annual report. Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
other financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationships among members of the Board.
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The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which includes but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee made an annual review on the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, made
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
under review, the position of chairman was vacated before 9
October 2019, while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman
and the CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of Chairman and CEO and/or
the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers that
the sufficient measures had been taken and that either the overlap
of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board

and the management.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors
the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.

Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,
at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
resources will be provided to all Directors to discharge their duties
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions

reached.
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During the year, the Board convened 1 shareholders’ general
meetings, 6 board meetings, 4 Audit Committee meetings, 1

Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee

0

FROEEENNEBRE—RRERG X
EXgeH WAREBEZXEZEGE&E — R
ZEGEREN NIRRT EEgE ENE

=

meeting respectively. The attendance of individual Directors at ERREREUREETT BEZEZE T Fil
general meetings and meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, ZEERIRLEZEGEERNHERTT !
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee is as
follows:
Meeting attended/held
HE/ BT8RN
Shareholders’

general Audit Remuneration  Nomination

meeting Board Committee Committee Committee

BRAS BE%x® EBKZE® §WZEe RuZEe
Executive Directors iﬂﬁﬁ?
Chen Zhi (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as Chief & (THAEH) (FZF-NE

Executive Officer of 9 October 2019) +ﬁ7z FEZAHTHE) 1 6 NARER  NATER  NATER

Yu Shi Quan (Chief Financial Officer) SHE (EEVER) 1 6 N/A R N/A B N/A R
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Chen Wei Dong RER 1 6 NAKER  NATER  NATEH
Chen Min R 1 6 NATEA  NATEE  NATER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTESE
Wong Heung Ming, Henry =L 1 6 4 1 1
Zhou Chang Ren BEL 1 6 4 1 N/A R
Cai Jian Quan B 1 6 4 NATER 1
All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information. FTEEEESERMERNERN REIR

They also have access to the advice and services of the company

secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the %o

A EE

AABHNRBDWERHENT R MR
ARMEAENEFREEFTIXMHK

Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables

risks to be assessed and managed;

(i) set the Company'’s strategic aims, ensuring that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and review its management

performance; and

(iii) set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.

The Directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s projections and after taking into account
the reasonably possible changes in the operation performance,
believe that there will be sufficient financial resources available
to the Group at least in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fail due. Accordingly,
the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements set out in the audited financial
statements on pages 99 to 240 of this annual report on a going

concern basis.
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Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of Directors

All Directors of the Board served in office during the year. Every
Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their
understanding and commit to high standards of corporate
governance. The Executive Director brings his perspectives
to the Board through his deep understanding of the Group’s
business. The Non-Executive Directors and the Independent Non-
Executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience,
understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge
of capital markets to the Group’s business. The Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable continuous
professional development programmes for all Directors to hone

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group’s
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings’
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
In addition, all Directors have been updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. A summary of
training recovered by Directors for the year ended 31 December

2021 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
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regulatory
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2021 no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, which may be terminated by not less than six months’
notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for non-
executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the other.
The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of three years and shall be terminable by either party giving
not less than one month prior notice in writing. The Directors have
power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person
to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. In accordance
with the Articles or Bye-laws of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EEkEREENSERIERBERS
ERBDEXHBEEEREB UMHHEES
FERFAAMEFASRBEFLBER
oM ZE_—FEF UEEMALTRER
BEFEhERBERNRE-

ZREREREES
BRTESERIFRTESFEHLART TR
BaK R=F HER—SEs— K%
HALRKNER MRITEEMS) AFLR
—fBR FIFRITEEMS) NEEMBAMA
- BIYFRATESTEEFHA=F > FTHE
W—HEHALR—EANELESEBAM
RE-BEAEBREIBZEEMALIS
FESF VUARERETRIHEFENES
Bl - EMAANEENES  EHSNELR
ERRBEAXGRTHER BRFTE
ERINE LEREF - REFAQATHEI N
AR RAEAADSENRRBERG L
=RZ-EREF WHEFABLIE=AL

H=EE ARBEEER VR =Z02—H
EFARESR ECRES (BEREER

HEZENES) HARVE=FHFETE—
:9_’\0



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Relationships and associations among the Directors

Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save as disclosed,
there was no relationship between members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
dissenting views expressed by the Directors, which should
be made available to all Directors for inspection. She is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
document are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the
intended dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board
committees. It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to
send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities by the directors of the Company.
Specific enquiries have been made with all the incumbent
directors of the Company and all of them confirmed and declared
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in

the Model Code during the year ended to 31 December 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman), Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren and Mr. Cai Jianquan.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor
- To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards
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- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’'s annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly financial highlights,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements

contained in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control and

risk management systems.

- To review the financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which being independent

namely

non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages to the Directors and
senior management which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

trends and practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;

(c) reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and

(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
Mr. Chen Zhi, and Mr.

Wong Heung Ming, the majority of which being independent

namely Mr. Cai Jian Quan (Chairman),

non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee selects
and recommends the candidates for directorship shall base on
the criterion including professional knowledge, competence,

experience, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which include but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the year:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate

professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as

ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders’ meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for re-election at the previous general

meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee had performed their primary duties to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including its diversity, based on a
range of perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and requirements, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills,

Committee considered that the current composition of the Board

knowledge and regional experience. The Nomination

is balanced in terms of diversity and is able to meet the objectives
of the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors” and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PwC as the Group’s external auditor. The
statement by PwC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 85

to 98 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration
paid or payable to PwC for audit services and non-audit services
amounted to RMB3,474,000 (2020: RMB3,821,000) and nil (2020:

nil) respectively.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and for reviewing their
design, operational adequacy, and effectiveness on an ongoing
basis to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The Board engaged an internal audit team which
carries out the analysis and independent assessment of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and reports to the Board. Review of
the Group’s internal controls cover major financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been done on a systematic basis based on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. The scope
of review for the year had been determined and approved by the
Audit Committee. Saved as disclosed below, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. The Board and the
Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the Group's

internal control systems are reasonably implemented.

The Company recognises that the overlap of chairman and CEO
and/or the vacancy of chairmanship may affect the operations of
the Company. The Board has met regularly to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken and the overlap of
chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and

the management.
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Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board considered the following corporate

governance matters:

(i)

(ii)

review of the compliance with the CG Code; and

review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.

TtEERRS
TEERRAE
%%@ﬁ%ﬁ@mkﬁ%%fﬁ?FE'JE?‘_I—F@JTE
E =)A=

(a) FIEKRBNAATDNEXELRBRRKE

R

(b) BAKERAEEEFhSHBEMNE
HRFEEERLER

(0 BAKERFRADETEIEREERE

WHERRBR

(d) HE - BIRERBANEEREZESN
TATEl &

(€ BEAADETHEFELEATI Y
REMACEEARENNHRBER

RER - EFEEZEUTEXELRER !

iy WABERBTEEEATR K
(ii) BELEZEEMN AEBNAEEE

&ELFE‘E%’EE%,&EE’\JE}Z&*‘P

+AHAEREBERAT T _—FER



82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders
and investors informed of its business performance and strategies
by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure policy which
complies with the Listing Rules and provides all shareholders
equal access to such information. The Company also publishes all
documents on the Company’'s website at www.shifangholding.

com.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.
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Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders

of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the

mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the CG
Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.

(a)

Convening of general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that
such requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting

at general meetings of the Company.

EEERRS

UTHAREH-_SE—_FMNA—HEEN
NEFEEBTRBORMEFHIMERERERT
RENKTABRRETEIEGE-

(a)

ERRERBARRAE

RRRETBRE—BRAANLEARTES
ERERMERRRRDNREBNEEMW
FRN(HEATLETERSERE) &
EMEREESEERNBERTERM
EHERAVRAEEN THIEHE
RPUALTRZ > BRHEERPIALRIE
REREHRFEAEREATREX
ELERENERT/EREFT DR +2
— o RRARENAEEA—LERAE
BRINARBRR (RERLBA) BERQ
ANEBNIENERN (HEARF L
BEIBNER EXMEEXESEHE
KHBRTAR EEERAVNBAEG
B THREHERNHALRE KR
HERNWATIRERXREZEREREAFER
BERARTRRAG ERENEATH
ERERDR 73—

+AHAEREBERAT T _—FER

83



84

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within further 2 months of the deposit
of such requisites, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a

Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 or the bye-laws of the Company.
However, Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution
may request the Company to convene an special general
meeting following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company's
website.

(c) Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
enquiries.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents. The New Memorandum
of Continuance and Bye-Laws was adopted conditionally at an
Extraordinary General Meeting held at 25 February 2019 with
effect from the date of continuance of the Company under the
laws of Bermuda.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=
pwc

To the Shareholders of ShiFang Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set

out on pages 99 to 240, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year

then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of RMB188,864,000 and a net cash used in operating activities
of RMB5,427,000 during the year ended 31 December 2021
and, as at 31 December 2021, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB213,244,000 and the Group
had a deficit in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB125,626,000. These conditions, along with other matters as
described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:
o Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible
assets

o Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Impairment assessment of gooadwill and other intangible assets

BB RAMBELEE B EFS

Refer to note 2.9 (Accounting policies), note 4(a) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 9
(Intangible assets) to the consolidated financial statements.
RS W FREXNEE2.9 (51 E) Hitda) (FRE
EHEE R IRER) K139 (FEIEEE) °

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
goodwill and other intangible assets were approximately
RMB11,208,000 and RMB187,068,000, respectively before
the impairment charges for the year ended 31 December
2021.

R _E_—F+_A=+—HB agxEMELEENN
BRBE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLEENREERAN
IREIE D AIA A ARY11,208,0007t 2 A K #187,068,000

JT ©

The Group tests annually or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate an indicator of impairment of
goodwill. For other intangible assets, impairment test is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate an indicator of impairment.
EEESFIANELESAABRETETHERETRE
ETAE mEMEBTLEEMS  RELEFHHBREHRE
TAETREETRERE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM ES A RERARESEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s

impairment assessment included:

BT REEBRENGENEFERE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

Obtaining an understanding of the

management’s internal control and
assessment process of impairment assessment
of goodwill and other intangible assets
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors;
THREEEHBRERAMEBTL EEETRE
SHE R ERES R ERE > L EBAEE
MR B R EME A R A Z= KT LT
HERERRMAES BAR ;

Evaluating the outcome of prior period
assessment of impairment assessment of
goodwill and other intangible assets to assess
the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process;

S 2 HAth #7128 E R E T & B AT B ST
BER UL BEER G BRENANIE ;

Evaluating the independent external valuer's
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

BIZ MRS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM E A RERARESEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAMELEER BTG (B

The Group has performed impairment assessments to
compare the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units (“CGUs"”) to which these assets belong, based on
discounted cash flow projections using fair value less costs
of disposal (“FVLCD") or value in use (“VIU") calculations,
to their carrying amounts. The key assumptions used in
the valuation included, likelihood of occurrence for the
possible outcomes for the litigation (Note 9(b)), discount
rate, revenue generated from operation, revenue growth
rate and terminal growth rate. Based on the impairment
tests performed, impairment charges of RMB4,092,000 and
RMB157,226,000 were recognised against goodwill and
other intangible assets for the year ended 31 December
2021, respectively.
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(iv)

(iv)

(vi)

Evaluating management’'s assessment on
identification of CGU;
FEEEEHEHNIREEEEMUIEL 2T
=

Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used based on our
industry knowledge and relevant market
practice;

BERBMITENB RERTIZES > TR
FRAMERZESEE

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology adopted and the reasonableness
of key assumptions used in determining the
recoverable amount with the involvement of
our internal valuation expert;
ZPNABEEERSEFGEETKEE
BEFMERMEERZNBEELRER T ER
HHNEEM ;

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
MREEE KM E N EERREEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAMELEER BTG (B

We focused on this area due to the significant management (vii) Assessing the reasonableness of key
judgment involved to determine the assumptions used in the assumptions used in the valuation by
impairment. comparing assumptions such as discount rate,
KM ILHEERENRENBREIREREEREY revenue generated from operation, revenue
i o growth rate and terminal growth rate against

the approved budget, latest development of
projects, relevant market data and industry
information;

(viip BEHWHLERRER -EEEEZRm W@ R
ERAKABEREZSHRRESHERE
HENFEBRERAR R ERTISHERITE
B FMEEEFMREIERRESEE;

(viii) Discussing with management to understand
and evaluate management’s basis and
rationale in arriving at the best estimate for
the provision for the right to land lease and
other assets in the CGU as at 31 December
2021, based on the relevant information
available at the relevant stage of the litigation,
including related legal correspondence,
and the latest development of the legal
proceeding;

(viii) RIFFFEAEREMEER FIISRVAERA B K (B35 4ERE
ERRE) UK EREEFNEMER HEE
EBstmUl THRERIEEEEEE _T - —F
+RB=+T—HRELBUPIHEER
HMEERABENREGSHEERIER;
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
MREEE KM E N EERREEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAMELEER BTG (B

(ix) Evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external
lawyers;

(ix) SHEBIIIBRANEE ENRFEL

(x)  Discussing with the external lawyers and
obtained the legal opinion from them for
which management relied on in identifying
the magnitude and likelihood of occurrence
for the possible outcomes; and

(x) EASNEREREMET R M B SN AR RENEIG B IEE
e 0 B BB A4S SR AV B B M e BT AR MBS AT Ak 5= B9
ERER K

(xi) Considering management’s sensitivity analysis
with respect to variations of key assumptions
adopted, to evaluate the extent to which
reasonably possible changes, both individually
and in aggregate, would result in material
changes in the assessment on impairment.

i)y TEEEERRMMRMIEZERRENHR
B UEGEA T8 B AT B K
F Al B BB BT LS N E R E SR FI e E) o

Based on the above, we found management’s
judgments and assumptions involved in the
impairment assessment were supported by available
evidence.

B EXPrit > HMFEREEE T BEY RAIH
b R flRer B A 18R SE 2 5 o

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale

BEFFFHEYELLE

Refer to note 2.11 (Accounting policies), note 4(d) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 13
(Properties held for sale) to the consolidated financial
statements

ERRSHEIRZNZ2.11 (B BFE) MaE4(d) (Fi#
Ea 1G5 RIBR) RITGZE13 FFIELHEYFE)

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The net carrying value of the Group's properties
held for sale was RMB22,793,000 as at 31 December 2021.
EEEREETHFLEYR ZFY=RREERRAAE
BEHERAREETR EEEFFHEYER_T-_—
F+ZRA=+—HMNKREFESAR22,793,0007T

Management engaged an independent external valuer to
appraise the value of the properties held for sale using the
direct market comparable approach and income approach.
Management assessed the appropriateness of methodologies
and assumptions underlying the valuations performed by the
independent external valuer.

EIRE LB I E A R B H 5 L BUE R AE
EREHEMENEE BEREB ST GBI EEME
TRHREFNERL ZRERRESEHE-

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM ES A RERARESEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
judgement and estimates used to determine the
fair value less costs to sell of the Group's properties
held for sale included:

RMEEERUEE BSEEFFEHEYENR
AREREERANERE A RGLMAREFE
1

(i) Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s internal control and
assessment process of valuation of properties
held for sale and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors;

() THEEEHFKFLEVFRETHENANE
EH KRR > W E 8N E (5t RE
Bk EAthE A E R RKT U EERER
BRILAYE B R 5

(i)  Evaluating the outcome of prior period
assessment of valuation of properties
held for sale to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

(i) FHEFFHEVMEREENRBTGEER XU
ML EEE A BRENEMIL ;

(iii) Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;

(i) TEBHEULIIRLEMZEESEE B NHEB
EETEE
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale (Continued)

BEFFFHEYELE (&)

We focused on this area due to the significant management
judgement and estimates used to determine the fair value
less costs to sell and, consequentially, the provision for loss

for the Group’s properties held for sale.

RAMILEREENEE SEERFHEDNENLR
BRHENTERALESEHNGEREGR REREREEE
H i B2 {5t o

BIZ MRS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BANE

(iv)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

SN EIERAREFE

Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used by the
independent external valuer with reference
to the nature and purposes of the Group’s
properties and relevant market practice;

2R BEEEVMEUHERARUKNERAT
%F?’%i?l\%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%

Discussing with management the
appropriateness of the selection criteria of
comparable properties and the adjusting
factors used in the independent external
valuer’s valuation under market comparable
approach having regard to the location, size
and nature of the properties; and

EEEEN RO LR A PERER R IE T
SNEBIE BRI IR B R IHLEBUEMYEMLE - K
NWNRUEEFANAERRRREEE ; &

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation under
income approach, including expected rental
income, growth rate and discount rate,
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and comparing with relevant market
data;
REBEXRMBEEREBRITENANH  TER
BUACEETEERPTANRERRR (B1EE
HETWA-BEXRFTREX) 26588 I
BT B BUREITHEE ;

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM ES A RERARESEE

Based on the above, we found management’s
judgments and assumptions involved in the
impairment assessment were supported by available
evidence.

B EXPrit > HMERBETEFASRNEERE
Hlln b5t B AR RE X o

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

BIZ MRS

EERBERZEEMESHUBR
RAXKENTE

REB(RBFADRBERERBEEMD
EMEHEBRER UHEIRAREESHY
BRENRETFEARNFRERMER
WERBRRAFTENRIEGES -

ERECHBBRERE EF88TH &8
BRECENE LEBRABRTREA
TREEEARNER UAERFBEEES
SEER RIFEFTARS EERBENF
IS BRI EREMBRIENSE-

ZEZEEERAEEE SEENUBRS
12
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

BIZ MRS

TRREBSEARNANERES > UREE
ENEREF BEENLIIFYE S&EH
REEEHRIN BRI ERER -

FEEEMERBEFTHRNIGEERIF
ZEtEStA AR IR EN G-

HEERAFBECE S ERNREN
R iS58 ° AR IBPTE EXLAY B 51 /R 58 - 7
ERERRFHHEFSENBERAEBNEARS
BEM EMAEERY EEENF
BREENEEERREE - WRELR
REEERTHEEE AU EEZHE
S RFERE IR G HMBRE
PRERKE - REARNKETE
AIZRFEEERFEREER - BB
i BN RN S B IEFTBS =
SRR M RRFEFBERIEE

B BEEEfERELE-

FECHYBERENEEIERAN &
BHNRES SREKRE UREHMBR
RETERBRZMERE-

B BEEERNERAEBIINMBEE
EENMTE BEMNESER UEYH
EHMBRREXRZER -RMEE &
EEBESFHNSA BEMAT - HMAD
B R RAEEESE-
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEERRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
R_FE——F+_F=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F C—T-TH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEHBEREE 7 39,822 51,058
Investment properties KEYME 8 - 26,681
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 24 3,241 5,211
Intangible assets B E 9 36,958 201,808
Prepayments, deposits and other FENMIE 2T R
receivables HAfEWRIE 10 20,785 80,544
B, 60302
Current assets TMENEE
Biological assets EMEE 11 119 211
Inventories =5 12 917 894
Properties held for sale FIEHEYE 13 22,793 24,255
Financial assets at fair value NAELETRARN
through profit or loss THMEE 14 7,432 6,564
Trade receivables — net B S e RIE— 338 15 7,004 5,461
Contract assets — net SNEBEE—FE 5 2,419 3,520
Prepayments, deposits and other FENMIE 2T R
receivables H th & R IE 10 62,088 11,513
Amounts due from related parties FEWRE A 718 35(c) = 1,273
Restricted cash SRREIIRE 935 1,363
Cash and cash equivalents REKRIREEBIER 16 8,851 12,889
112,558 67,943
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEERE 36 26,681 =
139,239 67,943
Total assets M E 240,045 433,245
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners TATIFMBEER GRS
of the Company
Share capital &N 17 8,065 7,769
Share premium R mE 17 55,796 48,820
Other reserves Hithfa s 18 191,702 191,363
Accumulated deficits HEtE 4l (381,189) (193,722)
(125,626) 54,230
Non-controlling interests JETERL R 19(a) 6,106 7,502
Total (deficit)/equity (B54L) HEm4EEE (119,520) 61,732

THERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERERR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
RoE_—F+-"F=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF C—TCoTE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M5 AR¥TF T AR ¥T T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBIEE
Lease liabilities MHEaR 24 4,694 5,177
Other payables HEI I8 21 - 52,000
Loan from a shareholder FE—BLRENER 35(c) 1,500 =
Convertible bonds AR ([E 25 23 = 168,148
Deferred income tax liabilities FILFRfSiasE 20 888 45,517
______ 7,082 270,842
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade payables B S ENRIE 21 12,790 11,781
Other payables and accrued expenses — EfthFE(TFRIE K ESTRI X 21 123,764 48,346
Financial guarantees MR 865 1,110
Lease liabilities GEN=S=NE 24 2,036 2,438
Borrowings B 22 6,350 17,860
Convertible bonds A AR ([E 5 23 181,356 =
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFRIS IR aE 5,851 5,830
Amounts due to related parties FE(TREE A L FIE 35(c) 19,471 13,306
08924838 100,671
Total liabilities ES=R i 359,565 371,513
Total equity and liabilities Hm kB EETE 240,045 433,245

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 240 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 13 May 2022 and signed

on behalf of the Board by:

Chen Zhi
[‘ﬁll_'\

Director

EFE

FOBFE240EmN A HMBRERLEETI N
SE-_FERRA+=A#E TAHTIIESA

REFEHEE

Yu Shi Quan

R

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SHEEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
BE - —Ff+_F=F—HIFE

2021 2020
—E—F —ET2H
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
i AR¥TF T ARETT
Revenue A 5 265,158 126,384
Cost of sales #HE Bl A 26 (243,429) (112,514)
Gross profit EH 21,729 13,870
Selling and marketing expenses IHE RS iHE (26,253) (7,853)
General and administrative expenses — R RITERAX (40,833) (50,346)
Net fair value gain on financial assets at ‘A A ELERRARNEREE
fair value through profit or loss B2 B U R R 14 868 399
Net change in provision for impairment &M &GN EERBERHEESF
of financial and contract assets %8 1,796 (6,107)
Provision for impairment on property, ¥ = K& & BB B
plant and equipment 7 (8,818) (6,145)
Provision for impairment on EREEERERE
right-of-use assets 24 (1,550) (239)
Provision for impairment on goodwill ~ BZ& & EMEFREEREE B
and other intangible assets 9 (161,318) (21,546)
Other income E A 25 950 2,944
Other gains — net HAth K im —F 28 25 119 211
Operating loss REESIE _ (2133100  (74,812)
Finance income EETON 29 53 59
Finance costs AT A 29 (19,959) (18,413)
Finance costs — net 2D W N 29 __(19,906)  (18,354)
Loss before income tax MRFRS IR AR 18 26 (233,216) (93,166)
Income tax credit FriSinik e 30 44,352 18,627
Loss for the year FREE (188,864) (74,539)
Loss attributable to: T5IIEE ELEE
— Owners of the Company —KXABFFEE (187,468) (73,784)
— Non-controlling interests —JEERER (1,396) (755)
(188,864) (74,539)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
e ey IS S

2021 2020
—g_—%F “EBTEBHF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETT ARETF T
Other comprehensive income Hih2ml=
Item that will not be reclassified HETEEN 7 EE B mARHI
subsequently to profit or loss HH
Revaluation gain for property, plant and #% -HEKRBHERELE
equipment transferred to investment  #)ZEEB{H IR > HNFRIEIETRIE
properties, net of deferred tax = 2,629
Item that may be reclassified to O ER M E 18 m AR AYIE B
profit or loss
Currency translation differences B E =% 1,724 4,667
Other comprehensive income FRHEHMEEmKE
for theyear 1,724 7,296
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREIEKREEEEEE
for the year (187,140) (67,243)
Loss and total comprehensive loss  TF3IIEHELEE R
attributable to: 2 EEIEASEE .
— Owners of the Company —KXABFFEE (185,744) (66,488)
— Non-controlling interests —FFIERG (1,396) (755)
(187,140) (67,243)
Loss per share for loss attributable ZATIFFIEEEGEEN
to owners of the Company SiKEE
— Basic (RMB per share) — 2K (BRARE) 31 (0.2029) (0.0889)
— Diluted (RMB per share) —#% (BRAR™) 31 (0.2029) (0.0889)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHEDEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
BE - —Ff+_F=F—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARAAEENR
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds  redemption Capital Contributed  Exchange Revaluation  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve  reserves surplus  reserves surplus  Reserves deficits Total interests equity

AR
ks RiYERE REEE RAEOGE A4HE  ERER  ERGE  EMRR  IRGE  REd it HEREE a8
Note ~ RMBOOD ~ RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB0D0  RMB'O0)  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB'00D
Wi ABRFn ARRTn ARETR ABETn ARETn ARBTR ARBTn ARRTR ARRBTn ARRTn ARRTn ARRTR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZE_-5—H-AN&H 7,769 48,820 34519 997 41,297 96,890 1,885 2,629 13146 (193722 54,230 7,502 61,732
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = - - - - (187468)  (187,468) (1,396)  (188,864)
Other comprehensive income Eth2EbE

Currency translation differences BRABER - - - - - - 1724 - - - 1724 - 1724
Total comprehensive loss 2EERLE - - - - - - 1,724 - - (187468)  (185,744) (1,396)  (187,140)
Transactions with owners AREANZS

Appropriation of statutory reserves BRTITER - - - - - - - - ) 1 = = =
Conversion of convertiole bonds BRTHRES 170) 296 6,976 (1.384) - - - - - - - 5,888 - 5,888
Total transactions with owners SREANRBEE 296 6,976 (1,384) - - - - - 1) 1 5,388 = 5,888
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBZ-E+ZA=+-BNEH 8,065 55,796 33,135 997 41,297 96,890 3,609 2,629 13,145 (381,189)  (125,626) 6,106 (119,520)

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARMEEEE
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds  redemption Capital  Contributed ~ Exchange  Revaluation  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
Capital premium reserve reserve Teserves surplus reserves surplus Reserves deficits Total interests equity

ik
ke ROEE E5EE RAROEE  AdEG  EEER  EREE  ERER  ARER  RoBH @t FEREE  RERE
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETn ARBTn ARKTn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETn ARETR ARKTn ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2020 RIBZRE-F-BHER 6,402 36,376 34,519 997 41,297 96,890 (2,782) - 12982 (119774) 106907 8208 115,115
Loss for the year EREE = = = = = = - - - B (B8 (755 (74539)
Other comprehensive income Eth2ERE
Revaluation gain for property, plantand 1% BRRZEERNE

equipment, net of deferred tax MNRELTRE 8 - - - - - - - 2,629 - - 2,629 - 2,629
Currency translation differences BRAEER - - - - - - 4,667 - - - 4,667 - 4,667
Total comprehensive loss 2EERLE - - - - - - 4,667 2,629 - (73,784) (66,488) (755) (67,243)
Transactions with owners AEEANZS
Issuance of ordinary shares BTEER 17() 1367 12,444 - - - - - - - - 13811 - 13811
Appropriation of statutory reserves BRTIEHR - = = = = = - - 164 (164) - - -
Capital injection from a non-controlling ~ RE—EHBARFERRENTE

shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 49 49
Total transactions with owners SEEANNRREE 1367 12,444 - - - B - - 164 (164) 13,811 I 13,860

Balance at 31 December 2020

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be TS HEREEFRBHABENM T —HRE-

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ABHETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Zh 2 e £F === S

2021 2020
e T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETT ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities &Z;EEFRFBRERE
Cash used in operations REEBPMARE 33(a) (4,676) (5,938)
Interest received BUWH B 53 59
Interest paid BNFE (548) (439)
Income tax paid B PTER (256) (21)
Net cash used in operating activities & EEPT AR E PR (5,427) (6,339)
Cash flows from investing activities &REEZEFFBRERE
Payments for property, plant and ME -BERKEZNR

equipment (1,578) (1,071)
Additions of intangible assets RERTEEE 9 (35) =
Refund of prepayment for property, M~ BB R ERER

plant and equipment FET FRIF R R 5,306 -
Return of deposit for township /NEIEERENRERNR

development 10(i) 9200 -
Down payment received for asset BN EAFTIELHEEEZ

classified as held for sale ENNEeE] 36 8,539 -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, UXEEHE AT Z >

net of cash acquired N BRPTUERIR & - (12,671)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEME (FTH) RE$5E

investing activities 13,132 (13,742)
Cash flows from financing activities FEEZEFFFBRERE
Capital injection from non-controlling R B —fH /B A S

shareholders of a subsidiary FEERKRENEE - 49
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITHER (12,110) (2,147)
Repayment of other borrowing BEAMER - (1,590)
Principal payment of lease liabilities HEaGZAERIE (1,680) (2,235)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary 217 B FT1S RIS 348

shares 17(a) - 13,811
Drawdown of loan from a shareholder 1Z2EV& B & 1,500 =
Drawdown of bank borrowings IREVER1T AR 600 15,350
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES FTA) FiiBRE3

financing activities (11,690) 23,238
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERFESZEIEH GRL)

cash equivalents 1 hn;FEE (3,985) 3,157
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E#INIEERIBSEEER

of the year 16 12,889 9,753
Exchange gains on cash and cash RERIFAEZEBEEENINEWR TS

equivalent (53) (21)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of XA RIAELEIER

the year 16 8,851 12,889

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

ShiFang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group has
been focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising
businesses by consolidating with cultural media and film
media businesses in PRC and diversifying into tourism and

integrated developments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the

Cayman Islands.

The Company changed the domicile of the Company from
the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of discontinuation
in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda. The change has been
effective on 18 March 2019 (Bermuda time). The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda after the change of domicile.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 are presented in thousands of units
of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 13 May 2022.
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fEET R > &EMEE] ~ MR S A H th 75 18
B0 MBI R ERRBRAT -

KABIZEBRHERNHEREENT MK
REBRELAAUERER2IANER
FE ORAASHHESHEEMEZEAR
FE-wBER_Z—hF=A+N\HE
RERM) £ -RNEBME > A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for below:

o financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— measured at fair value;

o investment properties — measured at fair value;

and

o biological assets — measured at fair value less

costs to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (8)

2.1 RUNEBE (@)

Going concern

During year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
reported a net loss of RMB188,864,000 and had
a net cash outflow from operating activities of
RMB5,427,000. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB213,244,000 and the Group had a deficit
in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB125,626,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’'s current
borrowings amounted to RMB187,706,000 in total,
including RMB181,356,000 of convertible bonds
held by a company wholly-owned by the major
shareholder of the Company and bank borrowings of
RMB6,350,000, while it had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB8,851,000 only.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group failed
to repay a bank borrowing of RMB5,900,000 in full in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates of the
underlying bank borrowings agreement. Consequently,
a principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest of RMB6,000
became overdue (the "“Overdue Bank Borrowings”).
The Overdue Bank Borrowings are secured by the
Group's property, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of RMB6,928,000 as at 31 December 2021.

The Group is in active negotiation with the bank
in respect of the Overdue Bank Borrowings for
renewal, extension or replacement of the relevant
bank borrowings and the directors are confident that

agreements will be reached in due course.

BE_ZE_—F+°-A=+—H
HFE AEERSEHEBRFIEAR
#%188,864,000 T M &= /EE IR &
T EEE AR 5,427,000t 0 1Y
BT S+ _H=+—H K&
BErraaEBrERHEEA
213,244,000t MAERZ
RABIFMBEEREMLEREMA A
K #125,626,0007T

N_E-_—F+"HA=+—H"
AEBZRBERETAARE
187,706,0007c > BE—BHAEARQ
BAXERREEEBZRARAFEAR
AR &5 A K #181,356,000
TTRIBITEMRARYE,350,000
o MERERBEEEEEEEY
# AR #8,851,0007T °

R_E_—F+"_F=+—H%"
A E B KA RBARR T BN
BENEEERBPTHERRT
B AR #5,900,0007T ° AUk >
& AR #3,900,00070 B AE A
R#&6,000c B (HAARITE
;) cR—ZB-_—F+_H=+—
B @R T ERUAEEREE
A ANR 16,928,000 I ¥ ~ i
B E IR

7 £ B IE 7E L 78 B SR 1T 5 AR B2 4R
TRBEEUEE - LTEXNEHRE
HIRTTER EFHEIRBER
R R 1A 5%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") outbreak
that led to a series of severe administrative control and
precautionary measures taken by governments and
authorities in Mainland China temporarily disrupted
the operations of the Group’s various business and
in particular the progress of the Group’s tourism
and integrated development has been delayed.
Management expects that the China’s government
would launch additional proactive economic and
monetary policies to stimulate its economic cycle and
is confident that the Group's operation will recover in
2022.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about
the ability of the Group to continue as a going

concern.

The directors of the Company have assessed the
appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. In
order to improve the Group's financial position, the
directors of the Company have been implementing

various measures as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(i)

On 22 April 2022, the convertible bonds in
the amount of RMB181,536,000 was matured.
Upon its maturity, the convertible bond holder, a
company wholly-owned by the major shareholder
did not exercise the conversion but entered into
a loan agreement of the same amount with the
Group which is due for repayment in two years
from the date of the agreement at an interest

rate of 3% per annum;

The Group has successfully obtained a borrowing
facility of RMB20,000,000 from a company
wholly-owned by the major shareholder on 1
August 2021. RMB1,500,000 had been drawn
on 16 August 2021 and a further RMB1,500,000
had also been drawn on 29 March 2022. The
borrowing will be repayable in two years from the
date of drawdown with an interest rate of 5%
per annum. In addition, the major shareholder
has issued a letter of financial support to the
Company for a period of eighteen months
from 31 December 2021 to enable the Group
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
and to carry on its business without a significant

curtailment of operations;

2 EXg

BHMHFRRMEE

stEURIEE (48)

2.1 RUNEBE (@)

FHERE (8)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party
during the year ended 31 December 2021,
pursuant to which certain of the Group's
properties were sold at a consideration of
RMB28,000,000 and the relevant properties had
been classified as assets classified as held for
sale as at 31 December 2021. During the year,
the Group received down payment amounted
to RMB8,539,000. Subsequent to 31 December
2021, the Group received further down payments
amounted to RMB4,821,000. The transaction is
expected to be completed, and the remaining
consideration of RMB14,640,000 is expected to
be settled in full during the second quarter of
2022,

The Group has obtained written confirmations
from the directors and related parties which
confirmed that they will not demand the Group
for repayment of the amounts due by the Group
in aggregate of RMB20,844,000 for the next

eighteen months from 31 December 2021;

The Group is in active negotiation with the banks
for renewal, extension or replacement of its
bank borrowings, including the Overdue Bank
Borrowings and the directors are confident that

agreements will be reached in due course;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The

The Group is closely monitoring the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s operation
and particularly on the progress of the Group's
tourism project in Yongtai County. Despite there
were certain delays in the preparation work, the
Group anticipates the project will be ready for
commercial operation by the revised planned
time. The directors are confident that the Group
would be able to commence the commercial
operations of the tourism project in Yongtai
County in 2022 and starts to generate income
and operating cash inflows to the Group;

The Group is in negotiation with certain potential
investors to issue new shares of the Company
to raise fund to finance the Group’s working
capital and capital investments for its tourism and
integrated development projects; and

The Group will continue its efforts to implement
measures to strengthen its operating cash flows
and working capital position, including expediting
collection of outstanding trade receivables,
expediting the sales of properties held for sale
and deferring discretionary capital expenditures,
where necessary.

directors, after making due enquiries and

considering the basis of management s projections

described above and after taking into account

the reasonably possible changes in the operation

performance, believe there will be sufficient financial

resources available to the Group at least in the coming

twelve months after the balance sheet date to meet

its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Accordingly, the directors consider that it is appropriate

to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exists as to whether management of the Group is able
to achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the Group’s ability to
generate adequate financing and operating cash flows

through achieving the below plans and measures:

(i)  Successful draw down of financial resources
from the above-mentioned (i) borrowing facility
from a company wholly-owned by the major
shareholder and (i) financial support from the

major shareholder as and when required;

(i) Successful completion of the sale and purchase
agreement for disposal of the assets classified
as held for sale, and receive the remaining sales
proceeds from the independent third party in full

on a timely basis;

(iii) Successful negotiations with the banks for
the renewal, extension or replacement of the
bank borrowings, including the Overdue Bank

Borrowings;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

Successful implementation of measures to
address the disruptions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic and to complete the preparation work
and commence the commercial operation of the
Group’s tourism and integrated development
projects as planned as well as the successful
implementation of business plan for these
projects to improve the Group’s operating results

and generate cash inflow;

Successful in raising funds through placement
of the Company’s shares to finance the Group's

working capital and capital investments;

Successful implementation of measures to
control operating costs, expedite collection from
customers effectively and generate sufficient
cash inflows from the sales of properties held
for sale, as well as deferring discretionary capital
expenditures where necessary, so as to improve

the Group's cash flow position; and

Successful in obtaining additional sources of

financing as and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going

concern, adjustments would have to be made to write

down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to

their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further

liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-

current assets and non-current liabilities as current

assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects

of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 New and amended standards

(i)

(ii)

Amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments
to standards for the first time for the annual

reporting period commencing 1 January 2021.

COVID-19-related
Rental Concession

[FRS 16 (Amendments)

[FRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
[FRS 4 and IFRS 16
(Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

The Group has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these amended standards and
considered that there was no significant impact

on the Group's results and financial position.

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable

future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries
Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
The

Group controls an entity when the Group is

entity) over which the Group has control.

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements

of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company,
its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary
beneficiary. Fuzhou DingCe Culture, one of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into contractual agreements with Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe (the “Structural Agreements”),
where Fuzhou DingCe Culture provides consulting
services to Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and is entitled
to (1) receive a substantial portion of the
economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe;
(2) exercise effective control over Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an exclusive option
to purchase all or part of the equity interests in
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent
permitted by the PRC laws. By virtue of the
contractual arrangements, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe
is a structured entity and deemed as subsidiary of
the Company under the requirements of IFRS 10

“Consolidated financial statements”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity (Continued)

When assessing whether to combine a structured
entity, the Group evaluates a range of factors,
including whether (1) the activities of the
structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business
needs so that the Group obtains the benefits
from the structured entity’s operations, (2) the
Group has decision-making powers to obtain the
majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of the
structured entity, and (4) the Group retains the
majority of the residual ownership risks related
to the assets in order to obtain the benefits from
its activities. The Group consolidates a structured
entity if an assessment of the relevant factors

indicates that it controls the structured entity.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's
results, assets and liabilities in its consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is

accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
If this

is the case, the Group calculates the amount

investment in the associate is impaired.

of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of losses of associates’
for using equity method in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principle of consolidation (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.3 BHARRR (8

(c) Associates (Continued)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.4 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for

sale and discontinued operation

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets and
investment property that are carried at fair value and
contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are

specifically exempt from this requirement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for

sale and discontinued operation (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for
any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group) but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of
the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is

recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be

recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the
balance sheet. The liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale or of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from

other liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line
of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of
discontinued operations are presented separately in the

profit or loss.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is
the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘general and

administrative expenses'.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(iy  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.6 HEHRE (8)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2 BAGSHERME (B)

2.7 ME - -BERRE (&)
ME - BERRFEITENERZE
st A SRR F R A2
BEHRREE - AREHUT

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
BF 404
Leasehold improvements 5 — 10 years or the remaining term

of any non-renewable lease, whichever is shorter

HEYEEE SEN10FERATEEEENGF TFHR UBEERE)
Machinery 5 - 10 years
as S5E104
Fixture, furniture and equipment 5 years

HE R RRE 54

Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years
AE S5E10%F
Exhibition animals 5 years
REEBEY) 54

Bearer plants 15 - 25 years
EEMEY 15F 255

EENRGEERICAEHE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

The Group’s golden camellia trees qualify as bearer
plants under the definition in IAS 41 “Agriculture” and
are therefore accounted for under the rules for plant
and equipment. Golden camellia trees are classified
as immature until the produce can be commercially
harvested. At that point they are reclassified and
depreciation commences. Immature golden camellia

trees are measured at accumulated cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.8

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

For transfer of property, plant and equipment to
investment properties because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
surplus. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation surplus will be

transferred to retained earnings.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.

Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss as

part of other income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

29 BEEE (8)

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the

acquisition date.

Trademarks and licences have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences

over their estimated useful lives of seven years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

o Management intends to complete the computer

software and web site, and use or sell them;

o There is an ability to use or sell the computer

software and web site;

o It can be demonstrated how the computer
software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;

o Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and
o The expenditure attributable to the computer

software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEXRGFBEREE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued) 29 BREE ()

Computer software and web site (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part
of the computer software and web site cost include
the software development employee costs. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Remaining computer software and web site costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives and the terms of validity granted by

corresponding authorities, which are three years.

Right to a land lease

Right to a land lease represents the operating lease
with favourable terms relative to market terms as
acquired in a business combination that is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The right to a land
lease has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 41 years.

Township operation right

Township operation right represents a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities in the operation site.
The township operation right are shown at historical
cost. It has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 40 years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

Township operation right (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.

Exclusive operation rights

Exclusive operation rights represent the exclusive rights
arising from its contractual agreement as acquired in a
business combination and are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The exclusive operation rights
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the exclusive operation rights of

approximately 7 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEHHBREE (@)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Properties held for sale 211 FHEHEWE

Properties are classified as properties held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.

2.12 Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell, see Note 11 for further information on

determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including commission and estimated costs of transport
to the market but excludes finance costs and income

taxes.

The golden camellia trees are bearer plants and are
therefore presented and accounted for as property,
plant, and equipment (Note 7). However, the golden
camellia flowers growing on the trees is accounted for
as biological assets until the point of harvest. Harvested
golden camellia are transferred to inventory at fair

value less costs to sell when harvested.

Changes in fair value of golden camellia flowers on
trees are recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Farming costs such as labour costs and fertiliser costs

are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

21I3IRERHMEHEE (B)

(Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit

or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gain. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI|. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gain. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Net foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in general and administrative expenses
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEXRGFBEREE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

21I3IRERHMEHEE (B)

(Continued)
Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group
measures the impairment as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as

lifetime expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss

include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

. The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.

2.15 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at

the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial

Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third

party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial guarantees (Continued)
Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2.16 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
of newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. See Note 15 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1(b) for a description of the Group's impairment

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.

2.19 Restricted cash
Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified
as “restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

2.21 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income, except to the

extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company's subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current accrual and other payables in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to

such benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF"”) for eligible employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are
held in a separate trustee administered fund.
The Company’s contributions to the MPF are

expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.

There were no forfeited contributions (by
employers on behalf of employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to offset existing contributions

under the defined contribution schemes.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.25 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25Borrowings (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.25 famr (&)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over

the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Convertible bond

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible
bond is determined using a market interest rate for a
non-convertible bond with similar terms. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion, early redemption
or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity or
derivative liability according to the conversion feature
embedded. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity or derivative
liability component in proportion to their initial carrying

amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a convertible bond is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of a convertible bond is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on

conversion or expiry.

2.27 Revenue recognition

The Group determined when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step
approach: (i) identify the contract(s) with customer; (ii)
identify separate performance obligations in a contract;
(iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate
transaction price to performance obligations; and (v)
recognise revenue when performance obligation is

satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Newspaper and public vehicles advertising
The Group renders services for the creation,
production and placement of advertising
materials through certain newspaper publishers
and public vehicles operators. Revenue from
providing the advertising services are recognised

at a point in time when the services are rendered.

The Group’s role in the provision of services
on newspaper and public vehicles advertising
is that of a principal. When deciding the most
appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs
of revenue, both the legal form and substance
of the agreement between the Group and its
business partners are reviewed to determine each
party’s respective role in the transaction. Hence,
revenue from newspaper advertising services is
recognised on a gross basis when services are

rendered.

Marketing and consulting services

Revenue from marketing services comprised (i)
revenue from provision of marketing planning
and consulting services and (ii) commission from

sale of properties.

Revenue from marketing planning and consulting
services is recognised over time when the services
are rendered. Revenue are recognised over the

respective contract terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Marketing and consulting services
(Continued)

Commission from sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time when the services are rendered
and the customer (i.e. property developer) has
entered into the sales and purchase agreement

with the buyer.

Customers are invoiced based on the payment
schedule. If the services rendered by the
Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services

rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Printing services

Printing revenue is recognised at a point in time
when printing services are rendered and the
legal title of the newspaper is transferred to the

customers.

Sales of agricultural products

Revenue from the sales of agricultural products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods to the customer. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been placed at
the customer’s disposal (generally at the seller’s
premises), the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the goods in accordance
with the sales contracts, the acceptance provision
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been

satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.27 W FESD ()

(v) Others (v) Efth
Other revenue mainly includes rental income HtWam T ZEFHESHA
and other miscellaneous income. Rental income REMMBEEKA - E U A

are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease terms. Other miscellaneous
income are recognised at a point in time when
the respective control on goods or services are

transferred to the customers.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grants are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.

2.29 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased

asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases properties and land as lessee. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 41

years but may have termination options.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s

useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.29 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that

option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,

security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.29 Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received
o any initial direct costs, and

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of use assets is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

2.30 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

the period in which they are incurred.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk

exposures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk and other payables

The Group operates principally in the PRC.
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and majority of
transactions are settled in RMB. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables balance and other payables
denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD").
The Group does not hold or issue any
derivative financial instruments to manage

its exposure to foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2021, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have
been RMB453,000 lower/higher (2020:
RMB320,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD denominated cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other

receivables balance and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings and bank deposits. Bank
borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by bank

deposits held at variable rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
borrowings and bank deposits at the
balance sheet date and prepared assuming
the amount of bank borrowings and bank
deposits outstanding at each balance sheet

date was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2021, the Group does not
have any interest-bearing financial assets
or liabilities at variable rate. Hence, it is
not exposed to interest rate risk. (2020: if
interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2020, would have
been RMB24,000 higher/lower, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on

the bank borrowings).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, restricted cash, and bank balances
included in the consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
objective of the Group’'s measures to manage
credit risk is to control potential exposure to

recoverability problem.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
receivables, contract assets, other financial assets
at amortised cost (including deposits and other
receivables and amount due from related parties)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Management considers the Group has
limited credit risk with its banks which are
leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. Majority of bank
balances are deposited with reputable
banks. The Group has not incurred
significant loss from non-performance by
these parties in the past and management

does not expect so in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permit the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for trade

receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses and also

incorporated forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these trade
receivables was RMB7,498,000 (2020:
RMB9,298,000) based on expected credit
loss rates up to 100% (2020: up to 100%)

applied on different groupings.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information. The Group has
identified the GDP of the countries in which
it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on the expected

changes in this forward-looking factor.

When trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are

credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised
costs, the Group considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis

throughout each reporting period.

Management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of the balances
based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking

information.

To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of default as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Especially the following

indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse

changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the

debtors” ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes

in the operating results of debtors
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iif) ~ Other financial assets at amortised cost

(iv)

(Continued)
o significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the

same debtor

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of
debtors, including changes in the
payment status of the debtor in the
Group and changes in the operating

results of the debtor

Other financial assets at amortised cost
have low risk of default and it is not
expected any losses from non-performance
by the counterparties. As at 31 December
2021, the Group assessed that there is no
significant increase in credit risk for these
balances from the end of previous reporting
date and the expected credit loss rate for
these financial assets is immaterial under 12

months expected credit losses model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk
in relation to debt investments that are
measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amount

of these investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group invests surplus cash in time deposits
and money market deposits with appropriate
maturities. The Group reported net loss of
RMB188,864,000 and operating cash outflow
of RMB5,427,000 during the year ended
31 December 2021. As at the same date,
the Group held cash and cash equivalent of
RMB8,851,000 (2020: RMB12,889,000) (Note
16), trade receivables of RMB7,004,000 (2020:
RMB5,461,000) (Note 15) that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk and to fund the Group's operations.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
mortgage loans with a repayable on demand
clause amounted to RMB5,900,000 (2020:

RMB17,410,000).

Subsequent to 31 December 2021,
Group failed to repay a bank borrowing of
RMB5,900,000 in full in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates of the underlying
bank borrowings agreement. Consequently,
a principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest of
RMB6,000 became overdue. The Overdue Bank
Borrowings are secured by the Group's property,
plant and equipment with a carrying value of
RMB6,928,000 as at 31 December 2021.

Details of the bank borrowings are disclosed in

Note 22(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMHFRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEARERE (B
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBREEZE (B)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) WENEEZRME (B
The table below analyses the Group's financial TERLBEREEHDES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based AEEB EFEREARE > &K
on the remaining period at the balance sheet SENEMAEE 25 HEEE
date to the contractual maturity date. The EIHE B AB R B D AT o R I
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENEREAGORITARE
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within MeERITENEER K R
12 months equal their carrying balances, as 1218 B MR HAR A BRAE E 10
the impact of discounting is not significant. HiFm&&er- BRgms H1t
Specifically, for bank and other borrowing HEHFAINBETENEE
which contain a repayment on demand clause KEZBERNIBITREME
which can be exercised at the discretion of the o UM RIRE R E
counterparties, the analysis shows the cash S UEBOERERNCR
outflow based on the earliest period in which the N FHRAER
entity can be required to pay.
Less than More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
—FLR —EmE MELE AENE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETr ARETz ARETxT ARETR
At 31 December 2021 RZIEZ-F
+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables BRREMENTE 99,930 - - - 99,930
Bank borrowings RITER 6,429 - - - 6,429
Amounts due to related parties EREZEALTIE 19,471 - - - 19,471
Convertible bonds R RS 186,089 - - - 186,089
Loan from a shareholder RE—ARENER - 1,575 - - 1,575
Financial guarantees MBER
(maximum amount guaranteed) (BEEREH) 2,726 3,048 4,020 - 9,794
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,084 480 1,446 5,588 8,598
315,729 5,103 5,466 5,588 331,886
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE
+-H=+-H
Trade and other payables BEREMERNTIE 38,083 52,000 - = 90,083
Bank borrowings BITER 18,227 - - - 18,227
Amounts due to related parties ETEEA LB 13,306 = = - 13,306
Convertible bonds R ES - 182,628 = = 182,628
Financial guarantees BER
(maximum amount guaranteed) (BEEREH) 3,050 2,780 7,601 - 13,431
Lease liabilities HE&HE 2,894 1,798 1,444 5,962 12,098
75,560 239,206 9,045 5,962 329,773
+AERERAT —T - —F5#K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet.

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 is 81.6% (2020:
44.7%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.3 Financial instruments by category

MEREERE (&)

3.3 REMBINEMIA

2021 2020
—E_—F —EBITF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETFTT
Assets as per balance sheet EEBRRMINEE
Financial assets at fair value through NAERIBRRARDY
profit or loss TRIEE 7,432 6,564
Other financial assets at amortised cost:  #%# 8% Ak 251/ Bk A9 EL 1th
TREE
Trade receivables, deposits and other BSEWRIE - EE K
receivables HpE W= IE 66,608 65,257
Amount due from related parties FEWRAE N 718 = 1,273
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 935 1,363
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIBE+EEEER 8,851 12,889
Total et 83,826 87,346
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEEEBERMAINERE
Carried at amortised cost: R AT AR
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 99,930 90,083
Borrowings EES 7,850 17,860
Amounts due to related parties FEAT B A\ =R I8 19,471 13,306
Convertible bonds EIEY e 181,356 168,148
Financial guarantees B FEIE R 865 1,110
Lease liabilities HEas 6,730 7,615
Loan from a shareholder RE—BRENEMR 1,500 =
Total #ast 317,702 298,122
THERERAT T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, trade
and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties, financial guarantees,
lease liabilities and convertible bonds. The fair value
of other financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments,

unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
there are certain financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss measured at value in use using discounted
cash flow method which approximate their fair values.
See Note 14 for disclosures relevant to financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
there are certain properties held for sale measured
at fair value less cost to sell using direct market
comparable approach and income approach which
are approximate to their fair values. See Note 13 for

disclosures relevant to properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.5

As at 31 December 2021, there are certain investment
properties measured at fair value less cost to sell
using income approach which are approximate to
their fair values. See Note 8 for disclosures relevant to

investment properties.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
there are certain biological assets measured at fair
value less cost to sell using discounted cash flow model
which approximate to their fair values. See Note 11 for

disclosures relevant to biological assets.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No disclosure of the offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities is made as there is no netting

arrangement in place during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance
and changes in operational and financing cash flows.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
higher of value in use or fair value less cost of disposal.
These calculations require the use of estimates,
including operating results, income and expenses of
the business, future economic conditions on growth

rates and future returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Management of the Group has performed goodwill
impairment review annually. Details of goodwill

impairment review are disclosed in Note 9.

Changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the assets is based could
significantly affect the Group’s financial position and

results of operations.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group owns an investment in a movie income
right and a network drama which have been classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The management performed an assessment on the fair
value of the balance based on discounted cash flow
model which required significant estimates, including
the streams of income which the Group is entitled,
determination of appropriate discount rate and
expected timing of settlement. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the financial assets
at fair value in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.

Valuation of investment properties
The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using valuation techniques. Further details of the

judgements and assumptions made, see Note 8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(d)

Valuation of properties held for sale

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. In absence of current price in
an active market for similar properties which is the best
evidence of fair value, the management determined
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimates. In making its estimates, the management
considers information from the valuations of properties
performed by external professional valuer by (i)
direct market comparable approach, including the
assumptions of the adjusting factors regarding to the
location, size and nature of the properties; and (ii)
income approach, including the assumptions of the
expected rent income, growth rate and discount rate to
determine the fair value. Had the Group used different
inputs or assumptions, the fair value of the properties
would be different and thus caused impact to the
consolidated income statement. Details of the valuation

of properties held for sale are disclosed in Note 13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
contract assets

The Group recognises impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses model. The model involves
the assessment on the probability of default on the
balances based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking information.
Impairment is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes. The identification of probability of
default requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Details of key assumptions and inputs used are

disclosed in Note 3.1.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.

BHMHFRRMEE

4 FARGHEEtRERR (@)

(e)

(f)

B REMBKREAREL
BEZRE
AEEZAREEHRENER
RMEREFE ZBEXNIRIZELER
CE  BEARKAEIEE R G
EERENBRIAEE - BUEE BT
HREPEEREE - BEEQNA A
MEEEAHE KRG ARETA
TERIARBABBEZFHBELNR
MYEE3. 1 ER ©

FRigiR

AERE T ERETEBMFTER -
EEFMSRERRAFHEKRH
B-TREXEFTBRETAFEZRS
RABEEEHRBEUARFEHER
NIRHEE - HEBERERKNR
BERARPTANEZERR R
ZEEREREFHEEHBN
BN RAFR 13 70 5 s LA B E PR 1S 7R
BEERGRE-

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER

173



REVENUE

Revenue from external customers are mainly derived from
the provision of newspaper and public vehicles advertising
services to advertisers in the PRC, the provision of marketing
and consulting services, printing services and sales of
agricultural products. The total sales amount of the Group’s
five largest customers is RMB141,687,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB56,552,000). An

analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

KA
RENBELNBAFEERR AP EE
ERFREREKBHEHEESRE
DU 12 12 35 Ko 8 30 AR 75 ~ ED R AR 75 &z
HERER - BE_ZT_—+_8
=+t—BLEEE  AEREAERML
THEAEEEA ARK141,687,0000T (ZF

£ . AR56,552,0007T) o ANEME
FRBADHAT :

2021 2020
ZE—F “EBCBF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
Newspaper and public vehicles advertising RERBEEEES 13,299 10,150
Marketing and consulting services & i K 55 s AR 75 75,243 55,084
Printing services EN R AR 75 4,180 4,328
Sales of agricultural products tHE R E o 171,654 56,167
Others HAth 782 655
265,158 126,384
Timing of revenue recognition YA e 58 B i

— At a point in time —REEFRE 263,373 124,033
— Over time —FERs 1,470 2,213

— Under IFRS16 —IRIBEIR R F5 ¥Rk & %A
551657 315 138
265,158 126,384

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
revenue derives from Customer A of the Group amounted to
RMB66,930,000 which accounted for more than 10% of the
Group's revenue (2020: RMB39,282,000 from Customer A).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

5. IEA (#8)
BERGNEMZEERER

REVENUE (Continued)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers
AEBCEIUTEAERSOERZE
EREE:

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities

related to contracts with customers:

2021 2020

—E_—5F BT

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFIT

Contract assets (Note (i) HBHEE (M5E>)) 2,542 3,639

Less: Provision for impairment (Note (ii)) TR EREEE (MTEEG)) (123) (119)
Contract assets — net BHNEE—FRE 2,419 3,520
Contract liabilities (Note 21) aHa’| (MsE21) 19,194 9,741
Total contract liabilities X EEEEE 19,194 9,741

Notes:

(i)

Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration
in the exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to customer. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the right to bill the customer has established
and receipt of the consideration is conditional only on the

passage of time.

The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk

characteristics as trade receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses. As at 31 December 2021, a provision
of RMB123,000 (2020: RMB119,000) was made against the

gross amount of contract assets.

(i)

BHNEEREAEEENBREEET
FERRBMAENET - E@EA U
MR BRI BN EREEERE
MATMBE SNEEEEEEZ R

TRIE ©

AEFEERENBEERE 5 BRIRARIE
EAHERRRSHE-

AEBERB LA BHEEHEIBME
HEE - R-_E-_—F+-_/F=+—
B ReNEERBEEARAR
123,000 (ZE_BF : AR
119,0007T) HI#EH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

5 REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA (88
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with HERANERAZEERERE (B)
customers (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MisE @ (&)
(i)  Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance of non- (i) BHNEERENELIEHATREN

refundable payments made by customers.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue, which
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year, recognised during the year relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included in the s AEEHNEBERZ
contract liability balance at the beginning of BRI A
the year

(iv)  Unsatisfied performance obligations (iv)

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations

resulting from newspaper advertising services contracts:

Advertising services BEER%

Management expects the above unsatisfied (or partially
satisfied) contracts will be recognised as revenue during the

next reporting period.
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2021 2020

B —F ZEITHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFT

2,421 735
HWARBITZBHOSEE
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RETROEE:

2021 2020
—E—F TECBE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARBT T
7,417 8,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

The Executive Directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM").
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing

performance.

The Group has two business segments, namely (i)
Publishing and advertising segment and (ii) Tourism and

integrated developments segment.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of earnings
before interest, other income, other gain and income
tax. This measurement basis excludes the effects of
non-recurring expenditure from operating segments.
Interest income and finance cost are not allocated
to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the
central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group. No analysis of segment assets
and liabilities is regularly provided to the Executive

Directors.

As the CODM considers most of the Group's
consolidated revenue and results are attributable to the
market in the PRC and the Group’s consolidated assets
are substantially located in the PRC, no geographical

information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

As at 31 December 2021,

the Executive Directors

considered the nature of the Group’s business and

determined that the Group has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Publishing and advertising segment, which mainly
included provision of the advertising services,
marketing and consulting services, and printing

services.

Tourism and integrated developments segment,
which mainly included provision of tourism and
integrated services through its media, resort and
eco-tourism integrated development projects
and sales of agricultural products, including
the Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project, the
Yongtai Distinctive Town Project and Cooperative

Project in YongFu Town.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

(Continued)

The table below shows the segment results and other

segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

December 2021.

BHMHFRRMEE

6 DEEH (&)
(b) PEWARDEER (B)

TRIITRBE_Z-_—F+_F8
=+t HLEEEMERDHRH
FTHRATESZOEXBEREMD

$HI5H o
Tourism and
integrated  Publishing and
developments advertising Total
i35
BEAER HiRRES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AREFR ARBFT

Segment revenue from
external customers

Timing of revenue recognition
for revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Under IFRS16

Segment results
Other income
Other gain

Finance costs — net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

ENEPIEISEND kL ON

I\ e SR

Z R

BER

TRIREPR B R 22 A
5165

DEER
Hti A
H etz
MBHE—FE8

PRFRSIRAT R
FismiE s

EREH

172,103 93,055 265,158

172,103 91,270 263,373
- 1,470 1,470

= 315 315
(188,940) (25,439) (214,379)
950

119
(19,906)

(233,216)
44,352

(188,864)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Segment revenue and segment results

(Continued)

The table below shows the segment results and other

segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

6 DEEH (B
(b) PEWARDEER (&)

TRIITRBE_Z-_TFE+_A
=+t—HLEEEMERDHRH
FTHRATESZOEXBEREMD

December 2020. fBIEH o
Tourism and
integrated Publishing and
developments advertising Total
REREGER B ES a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETFT ANRET T AREFT
Segment revenue from external RENMDE RN DERA
customers 56,443 69,941 126,384
Timing of revenue recognition LONEE
for revenue
At a point in time HER2 56,443 67,590 124,033
Over time BERER - 2,213 2,213
Under IFRS16 REBER R EZER
51658 - 138 138
Segment results NEEE (42,021) (35,946) (77,967)
Other income HgA 2,944
Other gain Hithza 211
Finance costs — net MM T (18,354)
Loss before income tax BRFAISHIAIES 1R (93,166)
Income tax credit PIiSfik e 18,627
Loss for the year EREE (74,539)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies.

SHAEN G HERFEEN
& 5 B ARR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMEE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME- -BERRE

Fixture,
landand  Construction Leasehold furniture and Motor Exhibition Mature Immature
buildings ~in progress  improvements Machinery ~ equipment vehicles animals ~ bearer plants  bearer plants Total
HENZ #£8. [k} AR
THEEF HEIE £ BE  GLRRE A BE®YM  ETREW  ETREY 5t

RMBOOO  RMB00D  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'00D
ABETR ARBTn ARETn  ABNTm ARRTm  ARBTn  ARMTn  ARBETn  ARETn  ARETR

At 1 January 2020 K-2-%5-B-R
Cost A& 49565 15,411 10,777 013 10,589 717 4293 5,585 10,048 145,562
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (2.407) = (4,070) (28,591) (7,169) (6,234) (1,002) (137) - (49,610)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitRERR - = (969) (3.532) (966) @n) - - - (5,740)
Net carrying amount REFHE 47,158 15,411 5,738 - 2,454 664 3,201 5,448 10,048 90,212
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-E-EE

TZB=t-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ENRASE 47,158 15,411 5,738 - 2454 664 3291 5,448 10,048 90,212
Additions FE - 103 4 - 4 - - - - 1,071
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RREAT - - - - 527 - - - - 527
Transfer to investment properties (Note 8)  EEZERENE (Hxs) (26,681) - - - - - - - - (26,681)
Revaluation surplus BB 3,506 - - - - - - - - 3,506
Disposals HE (6,527) - - - (6) - - - - (6,533)
Depreciation (Note 26) E (Hii2e) (1,498) - (1,577) - (596) (106) (859) (75) - (4911)
Impairment (Note 9(b)) A (fz90) (5,309 (836) - - - - - - - (6,145)
Currency translation differences SEREZE - - - - - 12 - - - 12
Closing net carrying amount EREETE 10,649 15,598 4,165 - 243 570 2432 5173 10,048 51,058
At 31 December 2020 KZB-FE+ZA=1-H
Cost S 17,638 16,434 10,710 013 24,003 7132 4293 5,585 10,048 127,966
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,680) - (5,576) (28,591) (20,614) (6,288) (1,861) (412) o (65,022)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitAEHE (5,309) (836) (969) (3532) (966) (274) - - - (11,386)
Net carrying amount KEFE 10,649 15,598 4,165 - 2403 570 243 5,173 10,048 51,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

7 ME- -BEKRsE (E8)

Fixture,
Landand Construction Leasehold furniture and Motor  Exhibition Mature Immature
buildings in progress improvements ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles animals  bearer plants  bearer plants Total
HENE 38 R R
IHRET  ARIR &E #E  GLRkRR RE RE®YM  ERREN  ERRED At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR AEBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZBRC-%£
TZR=t+-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount ERERE 10,649 15,598 4,165 - 243 570 2,432 5113 10,048 51,058
Additions HE - 1398 - - 180 - - - - 1,578
Disposals HE - - - - (13) - - - - (123)
Depreciation (Note 26) & (Hit26) (505) - (1,559) - (543) (140) (859) (274) - (3,880)
Impairment (Note 9(b)) A (HEE90) (3.216) (5,602) - - - - - - - (8818)
Currency translation differences SEREZE - - - - - I - - - 7
Closing net carrying amount EREETE 6,928 11,39 2,606 - 1937 437 1573 4,899 10,048 39,822
At 31 December 2021 K-8--%+-A=+-A
Cost & 17,638 17,832 10,699 32123 23,54 1125 4,293 5,585 10,048 128,884
Accumulated depreciation it (2,185) - (7.124) (28,591) (20,638) (6,414) (2,720) (686) - (68,358)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitAEHE (8,525) (6,438) (969) (3532) (966) (274) - - - (20,704)
Net carrying amount REZR 6,928 11,39 2,606 - 1,937 437 15713 4,899 10,048 39,822

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain buildings
with a fair value of RMB26,681,000 have transferred
to investment properties as evidenced by end of owner
occupation. The difference between the net book value and

fair value has been credited to revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE -BERRE HE)
(Continued)

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment KEBNYME BERRBINEERT
has been charged to the consolidated statement of HHEXREHE2EW AR

comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020

R  EIEH

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

Cost of sales HHE R A 274 274

General and administrative expenses — R RITE RS 3,606 4,637

Total #ast 3,880 4,911

The Group recognised an impairment charge reflecting FEEMZEME BERKRERST

the aggregate difference totalling RMB8,818,000 (2020: R EENAERSSEHEARE

RMB6,145,000) for these property, plant and equipment. 8,818,000t (ZEZZEHF | AR

Details of impairment of RMB8,818,000 recognised for 6,145,0007T) ° L2~ BB KR B HE

property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 9(b). R E AR 8,818,000 FIsE1F 7

These impairment charges for the year ended 31 December MEEIb)IEBE - BE S - —F+A4

2021 were recorded in the Group's consolidated statement —t+t—HBHLEFE ZERERINAE
of comprehensive income (Note 26). B&afamiimakaoir (M15E26) o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KREWME

2021 2020

—E-—& C—z-=s

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBFT AREFTT

Fair value NAME
At 1 January w—A—H 26,681 =
Transfer from property, plant and EEBYE -BERRE

equipment (Note 7) (fFx7) - 26,681
Transfer to assets classified as held BREDEARFEHEERE

for sale (Note 36) (FF5E36) (26,681) =
At 31 December R+_B=+—H - 26,681
Rental income derived from investment properties amounted ERCBEYENESIALGE AR
to approximately RMB315,000 (2020: RMB138,000) during 315,0007C (CE T4 : AR138,000
the year (Note 5). 5T (MitEs5) o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2020 has been determined on the basis of

valuation carried out by an independent qualified valuer.

Fair value measurement using significant
unobservable inputs

The table below analyses investment property carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows

o Quoted price (unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities) (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included with level that
are observable for the asset or liability either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from

prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

The Group’s investment properties are categorised as Level
3.

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties is derived
using the income approach, by taking into account the
unobservable inputs included expected rental income,

growth rate and discount rate.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS O BEEE
Township  Exclusive
Computer Non-compete Customer Rightto  operation  operating
software  agreement  Goodwill relationships ~ Trademark ~ Web site aland lease right right Total
MR
BERAE RPN #8  ZREA 1 @ DHEER LER BRAEE @t
(Note &) (Note b)
(Kizka) (Htn)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TT  ARETR ARETn ARKTR ABETn ARETn ARETn ARETR ARBTn ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZSZZE

tZR=t+-HLEE

Opening net carrying amount ERETE 59 - 3,955 - - - 185,511 26,804 - 216,349
Acquisition of subsidaries KEHBAT = = 7,253 = - - - - 5,582 12,835
Amortisation (Note 26) #3 (W&20) 4) - - - - - (4,757) (707) (362) (5,830)
Impairment_ (Note 9(b)) B (H39(0)) - - - - - - (21,546) - - (21,546)
Closing net carrying amount EXEASE 55 - 11,208 - - - 159,208 26,117 5,220 201,808
At 31 December 2020 RZB-EE+-A=1+-H

Cost (77 3,146 11,500 89,839 14,500 9,400 8476 193,439 28,000 5582 363,882
Accumulated amortisation 238 (2,680) (11,500) - (14,500) (7,135) (8,476) (12,685) (1,883) (362) (59,221)
Accumulated impairment losses ZiEEER (411) = (78,631) = (2,265 - (21,546) = - (1028%3)
Net carying amount EEEE 55 - 118 - - - 1908 26107 520 201,808

Year ended 31 December 2021 H2I3z-%

TZA=t-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount EREFE 55 - 11,208 - - = 159,208 26,117 5220 201,808
Additions hE 35 - - - - - - - - 35
Amortisation (Note 26) #33 (15026) ®) = = = = = (1,982) (707) ®70)  (567)
Impairment (Note 9(b)) A1 (9(0)) = = (4,092) = = - (157,226) = - (161,318)
Closing net carrying amount EREEEH 82 - 7,116 - - - - 25,410 4,350 36,958
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+ZA=+-H

Cost TS 3,181 11,500 89,839 14,500 9,400 8476 193,439 28,000 558 363917
Accumulated amortisation EGE (2688)  (11,500) - (14,500) (7,135) (8476)  (14,667) (2,59) (123)  (62788)
Accumulated impairment losses RHtiERR (1) - (BD) = (2,265) - () - - (68171)
Net carrying amount REE 82 - 7,116 - - - - 25,410 4,350 36,958
The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged in mEEE#HEERaH2EKERN
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. FR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 0 BEEE @
Notes: B 5E
(@)  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been (@ mAEEANAMES HEESERE TR
allocated to the cash generating units as summarised below: SELBN:
Acquisition Net
of a Carrying
Opening  subsidiary Impairment amount
W iE—m
E4) MEAR A fE IRERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETR AR%®TR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z_—F+"H=1+-H
LLEE
Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou BNEBEERSEEE (W)
(Note (i) 7,253 - (4,092) 3,161
Cooperative project in Yongfu Town (Note (i)  XBESEER (Mizk(i) 3,955 - - 3,955
11,208 - (4,092) 7,116
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZT_ZF+"_A=t+—H
EEF
Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou BNBHEEESEE
(Note (i) (I=£()) - 7,253 - 7,253
Cooperative project in Yongfu Town (Note (i)  XEEAEER (Hizk(i) 3,955 - - 3,955
3,955 7,253 - 11,208
(i) Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou (i) WNBBHEEESER

During the year ended 31 December 2020, goodwill
amounting to RMB7,253,000 was recognised as a
result of acquisition of Fuzhou Mobile Media Co., Ltd.
Goodwill has been allocated to the CGU that engaged
in provision of the public vehicles advertising services
for the purpose of impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the CGU determined based on the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal was

higher than the carrying amount of the CGU.

As at 31 December 2021, due to the changes in
market conditions, the management has revised its
business plan of this CGU and determined to make a
provision for impairment of goodwill in the amount
of RMB4,092,000 based on the estimated recoverable
amount of the CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

(i)  Cooperative project in Yongfu Town
During the year ended 31 December 2019, goodwill
amounting to RMB3,955,000 was recognised as a
result of acquisition of Zhang Ping Nong Bo Hui New
Specialized Farmers’ Cooperative. Goodwill has been
allocated the CGU that operates the cooperative project
in Yongfu Town for the purpose of impairment testing.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, management of
the Group determined that there was no impairment of
the CGU to which the goodwill has been allocated.

Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Fanxing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a lease
agreement with the landlord, the land owner of the project
site for the Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project. The
landlord filed a claim against Beijing Fanxing claiming that
Beijing Fanxing failed to fulfil its responsibilities under the
strategic cooperative agreement and seeking to rescind the
strategic cooperative agreement and the lease agreement
entered into between Beijing Fanxing and the landlord.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment
charge of RMB21,546,000 and RMB6,145,000 against
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment,
respectively, arose in the Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin
Project CGU has been determined after taking into
consideration the independent external lawyers’ opinion
in relation to the likelihood of occurrence of the possible
outcomes of the litigation as of 31 December 2020 based
on the information obtained at the relevant stage of the
litigation, including related legal correspondence.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
received the judgement from the court that it was required
to rescind the lease agreement. Management has taken into
consideration the outcome of the litigation and hence, made
an impairment charge of RMB8,818,000, RMB1,550,000 and
RMB157,226,000 against the property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets respectively during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

BT HRRMEE

BREE (@

Myt

(a)

()

(&

(i) KBEAHIFIEH
BE_ZT-—hhF+HA=+—H
IFFE AREEFRIZERNT
BESESFHBIFEARE
3,955,0007C ° BB ERIE M S
BAEEDEELE KRIEGIEE
BHIREEEEB -

MBI —FRIZZEF+T
B=1+—H #x&BEEERT
BMEESEmENRSEEEMN
H IR E ©

IREERBERRRAT (ERELE) >
FER2ERBAR) @EF tRA

TERBEMEENEAE T MES
N TUBERZ - XETMIEREER
HERE BB REERERITHINE
BEFEHEETNEE WEREIEI
REEHETIT UMK S FIGE

HE W=

BHE_Z-_ZHF+-B=+—81
FECIERAGTEAISEMEEREE
SEBNEENERBERLEERY X
BERZLENRERZDIAARKE
21,546,0007T &2 A R #6,145,00075 75
KRB BERMEREZE S
ZHEF+_HB=+—HFrAEERE
CNAEMNERRBES  AHERE
R reATE R P R BB M E K (B IE48 R
TEERR) o

BHE_Z”_—F+"B=+—HBIHF
B> REBWENERERE TR EHE
HHAR - BIEBEZ EHFAGE R AL
REBEE-_E-_—&F+"HA=+—HI
FEDRHNEREREZE EAE
BEABFEESRABHIARE
8,818,0007t ~ AR #1,550,0007T K&z A
. #157,226,0007T °

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

10 FAfIFRIA ~ ¥ Fe H M FE UK

18
2021 2020
—E-—fF C—TCoTE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT AR®ETT

Non-current portion
Prepayment for township development
(Note (i)
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment
Other prepayments
Deposits for marketing and
promotion contracts (Note (ii))

Other deposits

Current portion

Prepayments

Rental deposit

Deposits and other receivables
Deposits for marketing and

promotion contracts (Note (ii))

IERENZR 72
/NAR S IEE MR HRIE
(B 5E()) 16,100 17,000
ME R RZENTBENRIE 4,685 9,991
HFa( I8 - 1,403
EHEMBEEREGONZSE
(Bf &) - 52,000
Hihizw - 150
20,785 80,544
mENER
FE{TTIE 2,484 3,866
HEE 899 917
¥ K EA B W IE 6,705 6,730
EiHRMBERGONZES
GEIDY) 52,000 =
62,088 11,513

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are denominated in the following

REER AN RIE RS H MR UK
ERIREEN TS EHE !

currencies:
2021 2020
—_TE-—% —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
RMB AR & 82,474 91,639
HK$ BT 399 418
82,873 92,057
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Prepayment for township development

Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into by
the Group with Yongtai Government on 15 September
2017, Yongtai Government agreed to form a long-term
strategic cooperation with the Group regarding the
development and operation of the Township Project.
Under the framework agreement, the Group shall pay
a deposit of RMB50,000,000 to Yongtai Government,
which was intended to be utilised for participating in
open tender auctions to be organised by the Yongtai
Government for land use rights, assets, grant of lease
and/or operation rights circulation within the project

site.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into an operation right agreement with the
Yongtai Government for the acquisition of a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities such as tourism,
sightseeing, resort, culture, sports and entertainment
in the operation site at a consideration of
RMB28,000,000. The consideration of RMB28,000,000
was deducted from the RMB50,000,000 refundable
deposit placed by the Group with Yongtai Government
under the framework agreement. The prepayment of
RMB28,000,000 had been utilised upon completion of
the acquisition on 19 April 2018. RMB5,000,000 and
RMB900,000 had been refunded by the Government
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2021

respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the remaining amount of
RMB16,100,000 (2020: RMB17,000,000) is intended to
be utilised for township development and is classified

as a prepayment for township development.

BHMHFRRMEE

10 FA{IFRIE ~ ¥ Fe H fh FE UK
I8 (%8)

(i)

NETEE AR MNTEMRIE
BREAEERAKFZHRBIER S
—tFNB+HEBFTILZERR
INETE B R AE BT L REASKES
MEERMG - RIBERG R &%
ERAKTRHRENZMREAR
#50,000,0007T > #E AR 2 Bk &k
BB RN TIEE EIAB
THIERAE-EE - HER TR
P E R ENARBIZRE -

#E"_ET—tHF+"8B=+—H
IFFE > AEEEKRFBATET L
—EHREE G NAERKE
AV RS E M U A E St
NETEERE X ERN
NE-BEARBREEANNREE B
B EEREEEETH NEA
AR #28,000,0007c c KB AR
28,000,000 c /e B A £ BRI IE
RipZEA KRBT B E
BB S AR #50,000,0007tH 0
B% o FEIT I AR #28,000,0007T
A ZE-N\FHBE+HLBHRES
HEM BB A - AK 5,000,000
TR AR #900,0007cH BN EE
E-NERIZEZ—F+ZA
=+ —HLEFEHBRE -

A —F+"HA=+—H &
T&% AR¥16,100,0005T (Z =
ZZ44F AR#17,000,0007T) % A
P/NEIBE R W B A/ AR
EIEEMTBNRIE

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Deposits for marketing and promotion contracts

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deposits for
marketing and promotion contracts represent cash paid
by the Group to a property developer in the PRC in
relation to exclusive marketing and promotion services
agreements between the Group and the property
developer. Pursuant to the agreements, the Group has
obtained rights as the sole marketing and promotion
services provider for two real estate development
projects owned by the property developer for terms
of 3 years over the selling period of the real estate
development projects. These deposits will, amongst
other terms and conditions, be repayable to the Group
after the Group meet the sales target as stated in the

agreements.

10 FAfIFRIA ~ ¥ Fe H M FE UK
I8 (%)

(ii)

SHHkTHBEESANES
RIE-_—FR-_ZEZFF+Z
A=+—H &#HEMBHEESY
NiEsEAEEMAEREYE
MEEII U2 BREHEHIGHE
B AR ek A P B — % 4 £ B &
BAEMNRE - REZEHR &
EEMYEREEAESNMRE
EHERZEEBES(EFARME
FEEEHEHMNE — SR
TR ERB IR E R 21
SR RAEEEINZEREMT
BEMHEBERE  ZEREF (U
RRBEEMERRIRG) BE TR
£M@o

11T BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 11T SMEE
Biological assets comprise golden camellia flowers growing EMEECRERM EERNESIESR-
on trees.
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE®TT ARETF T
At 1 January n—EB—H 211 239
Transfer to inventories EBEERFS (211) (239)
Changes in fair value due to biological BEREMEEER
transformation RAEE 119 211
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H” 119 211

During the year ended 31 December 2021,

the Group has

harvested flowers amounted to RMB211,000 and transferred
to inventory (2020: RMB239,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group's biological assets as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 were valued by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer who

holds a recognised relevant professional qualification.

The fair value of golden camellia flowers is determined using
a discounted cash flow model based on the expected flower
yield by certain management estimates and judgments
after allowing for harvesting costs, and other costs yet to
be incurred in getting the flowers for sale. Estimates and
judgement in determining the fair value of the golden
camellia growing on trees include the volume and stages
of maturity of the golden camellia flowers, expected selling

price and the discount rates.

The biological assets were classified as Level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfer between any levels

during the year.

The Group’s management reviewed the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. The management reported directly to the
directors. Discussions of valuation processes and results were

held between management and the valuer.

The management and the directors verified major inputs to
the independent valuation reports and held discussion with
the independent valuer on the valuation basis, processes and

results.

BT HRRMEE

11 EMEE (8)

RARBR I EXERNBIEXSE
BEEMEAEENGRBEERAERA
EﬁK%%%i_v_—E&_v_v
F+-RA=+—HZEVEEETH
Be

EERNAANEBERETEERS AR
ER A RWEREHERRK FEENE
fth B3 s 7 B9 5 £ 18 1F 1 B 5t R I iR
MHBRRTERR@ R  ERKERERE
BABE EEEARELERNE

M2
ERANERIEENGE KA EETES
TERNEE RN APEE B E B &AL
S

EVMEEDBBAABERBERNE=
AR o FRERE R MBI SR o

MUMBHREENME  cEEBEERER
ERBIUGEMETHLE - EEEE
BEOEERES -ERERGBEMEG®E
B RERET R

EEEREERERIMEMRSENE
EHAMBY AU (EEMRGER
E %ir—&nlﬂ%o

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

12 INVENTORIES 12 78
2021 2020
—g_—f —ECEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREBTT
Newsprint and printing consumables i R AR B2 ED Rl #E o 706 655
Golden camellia flowers FIER 211 239
917 894
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included MBARIWMAHEREI NEE
in “Cost of sales” amounted to RMB1,875,000 (2020: A& NE®1,875,000T (Z2 22 F !
RMB1,853,000). AR #51,853,0007T) °
13 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 13 FIEHEME
The Group's properties held for sale include the following: AERNFELEYESEUTIER !
2021 2020
—E—fF —ETEHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETF T
Properties held for sale FIELEME 22,793 24,255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of
advertising services to real estate developers in the PRC. The
Group’s intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly,
such rights are recognised as properties held for sale upon
the completion of the advertising sales transaction if the

related properties are ready to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of
the properties with reference to their market value with
the assistance of an independent property valuer. Valuation
methodologies used in the valuation included direct market
comparable approach and income approach which are within
Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy respectively.
For direct market comparable approach, observable inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1 included market
price of comparable properties adjusted having regard to
the location, size and nature of the properties (Level 2). For
income approach, unobservable inputs included expected
rent income, growth rate and discount rate (Level 3). There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring
fair value measurements during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the management compared the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell of the properties
and considered no further impairment provision is necessary
(2020: Nil).

The gain or loss on disposal and impairment loss of
properties held for sale are recorded in “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

BT HRRMEE

FIELEME (|
TREIYE TS I 1R B A B 5 7 KT i
EERBERE - AEENANANE

ZEWFE EIL ERBYETHLE
BRI T E S & X 5 R REsT

REFHENE-

EEEAEBIMEGLEMNGBE T2R
MENTEFTEHAABEREHEE R
KoFEFTANGEERD ZEEEETS
EEBOE R W@ A H DR BRARER
BERNBE _REB=M-MEEHHLL
BOEME > THRERABE (RN
BERIN BETELEBYENTE>
EREMPEME - RN RIEBEFHA
B(EZR -l ZEms > FAIRE
WABBOERBAAERACBRER
PFRER (B=M) -MEBERANEFE

S ERFE R F_HRRE=ZRZ
BIEEBH - RBEE_TE_—F+_-A4
St+—HILEFE EEEELEBYEN
REHEREARERBERE BREBA
FHE—DREZREBE CE-ZF H) -

HERFHEY XMW NEERFF
HEMENREGEETGHEAR R X
BT — AR B 17 BB 2 BT %

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

14 RREEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

R ABREY & Al
BE

2021 2020

—E-—F —BTEH

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Investment in a network drama — BRI EI R E 7,432 6,564

On 8 May 2018, the Group acquired an investment in a
network drama through the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the investment agreement on 22 May 2017,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Supreme Glory Limited
acquired 20% of the income right in a network drama for a
consideration of RMB6,000,000.

The fair value estimation of the investment was based on
the cash flows discounted using a rate based on the market
interest rate and risk premium specific to the investment.
Significant unobservable inputs involved in the fair value
measurement included the expected timing of settlement
and discount rate, which are within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, a fair value gain of
RMB868,000 relating to the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2020: a fair value gain
of RMB399,000).
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RZE-N\FEREANE > AEEFBK
BB AR REASELE -RIEBH
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Z ERERAINEZENBATWNE
—EPARAE RN R ERI20% > REBA AR
#6,000,0007T °

ZRENAAENRUTN S ERZE
BENRTE R HEFSENFXITRNIR
EMEMTc AREFESTRNEARR
AR A B B G TR AR UR (O] B HA R 7
RE BRAABERBERNE=HR-
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E REEARESEZEME—HK
FEIRME =Rz E 0 e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET

BHMHFRRMEE

15 BFRINRIE— 8

2021 2020

R  ETTEH

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T AREETF T

Trade receivables 85 W EIE 14,502 14,759
Less: provision for impairment of trade B B2 REWGRIE R EEE

receivables (7,498) (9,298)

Trade receivables — net B2 RIRIE— 58 7,004 5,461

The payment terms with customers are mainly cash on

delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30

days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the

relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group's trade

receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

ERTEREINRERULKRARM
Mo EEHNFIFLAMEEERE
B30 E365H A Z - AEEMNE ZEUL
MIARBERARNRE DTN T -

2021 2020
-5 ~—T-T&
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
1 — 30 days 1£230H 4,949 3,160
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,466 493
61 — 90 days 61290H 53 256
91 - 180 days 91&180H 731 917
181 — 365 days 181E365H 393 3,731
Over 1 year —&EE 6,910 6,202
14,502 14,759

Less: provision for impairment of trade B BREWRIERE RS
receivables (7,498) (9,298)
Trade receivables — net B EIE— 358 7,004 5,461
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15 TRADE RECEIVABLES — NET (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in RMB.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract

assets.

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of
RMB7,498,000 (2020: RMB9,298,000) were impaired
and provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the amounts of the reversal of provision credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income were
RMB1,800,000 (2020: the amounts of the provision charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
were RMB6,135,000).

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair

value.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, recovery of
previously written-off trade receivables of RMB35,000 were
credited (2020: written-off RMB2,000,000 were charged) to

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

15 B 5 EWRIE—F5E (8)

7 £ (8] B8 55 I S IE 10 B T (E U R
SHE-

AEBERBERMFRSEREI
BIEn st ERAEEBE MM E
SREBREBERGNEEERERRARE
B

R —F+ZB=1+—H EBEZE
W IE AR #7,498,00070 (ZE &
£ AR19,298,00070) BRI E K TR
BE - BE_T_—F+"-B=+—H
LFFEE T AEHIZEWREROEER
Cl&%E4 ARH1,800,0000 (2=
F . REHZERDRMDBFNEESE
# AN #6,135,0007T) ©

M ER UGB ERMEE  HiRE
BERKEEREAREHEF-

BHE_Z_—F#+-"B=+—HIHF
B rBERaHzmbimkxPst AlE %k
Al 5 B B 5 P WA IE A R #535,000
T(ZE_ZE BB ARK
2,000,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMHFRRMEE

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES — NET (Continued) 15 BZRKMRE—F8 (&)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment on

trade receivables are as follows:

FEEE S RERRRERBENES
T

2021 2020

R TETTETH

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFT ARBET T

At 1 January w—A—H 9,298 3,163
Net change in provision for impairment of B 5 RUGRIER &

trade receivables Bt g3 RE (1,800) 6,135

At 31 December R+-_B=+—H 7,498 9,298

The provision for impairment of trade receivables have been
included in “General and administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

BZREWRERERBEES AGHZE
Wa =BT — AR R TS A ©

FEBTEFAEIRRRFEREFR

+AEZEBRERAT —E—HFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in

the following currencies:

16 REKRIRITLHER

AEEHRERREEEER U
EHEHE

2021 2020
R T TETH
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREFTT

Cash at bank and on hand: RITKRFHEIRE ©
Denominated in RMB MAREESE
Denominated in HKD A TTEHE
Denominated in USD MUSETTEHE
Maximum exposure to credit risk o {EE R

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash at

bank approximate their fair values.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT HRRMEE

17 SHARE CAPITAL 17 BgZs
Equivalent
Nominal ~ nominal value
Number of value of of ordinary Share
ordinary shares ordinary shares shares premium Total
LERYE LEREE TERSEDE RiEE At
HKS RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT ARETR  ARBETR  ARETR
Authorised: ?i/’i :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at “Z72E—[-f
1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 :? ZE+ZA=+-Bk
and 31 December 2021 Z22-#+ZRA=+-HBz
SRAEE001ETZERER  100,000,000,000 0.01
Issued: E?é‘ﬁ :
Ordinary shares 1 January 2020 RIZZEF—F—HNERER 757,599,030 7,575,990 6,402 36,376 42,778
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note (a)) BTERR (15 @) 151,519,806 1,515,198 1367 12,444 13,811
Ordinary shares at 31 December 2020 AZE-ZE+_A=1+-Ak
and 1 January 2021 T -5—-f-HNEER 909,118,836 9,091,188 7,769 48,820 56,589
Issuance of shares upon conversion of RERTARESREIRG
convertible bonds (Note (b)) (MizE(b) 34,320,000 343,200 296 6,976 7272
At 31 December 2021 RZB_—F+"A=+-H 943,438,836 9,434,388 8,065 55,796 63,861
Note: e 53
(@)  The Company issued 151,519,806 ordinary shares at placing (@ EARANZE-ZFELBIT-HUERE

18

price of HK$0.101 per share on 10 July 2020 (representing

16.71% of the total issued ordinary shares of the Company as

enlarged by the issuance) to 2 subscribers.

(b)  On 27 July 2021, the convertible bonds with carrying amount

of RMB5,888,000 were converted based on the principal
amount of HK$8,237,000 (equivalent to RMB7,108,000) at
the conversion price of HK$0.24. As a result, 34,320,000 new
shares were issued and allotted.

RESERVES

The details of movement in the Group's reserves are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

103:

(a)

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve relates to the

redemption and cancellation of the Company’s own

shares.

18

BERRMN0.101EBTH2LDE A%
37151,519,806R i@ % (*E%ﬂ‘ﬁzl:@
ARBRTRAZRBETTEREHN
16.71%) ©

R _E_—FtB -+t HEREE
AR #5,888,0007T B9 7] #1 A% & % L
AN %88,237,0008 7 (HHER AR
7,108,0007T) & &5 HIARE0.24
BUETEHBR AL BT K%
34,320,0000& A&7 o

i

FEERENESFFHNF

£103EM

affRmEs K

(a)

A% 2 & [o] % 18
RAEBLREBELEALDEE kT
HASRMNAER-

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

18 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Capital reserves

Capital reserves primarily represent capital
contributions to certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the differences between the consideration
and proportionate carrying value of the subsidiary
disposed of where the Group still retains control of the

subsidiary.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the PRC
incorporated companies which are set aside for
future development purpose in accordance with the
regulations in the PRC. The allocation is based on
certain percentages of these companies’ profit for the

year, as reported in their statutory financial statements.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the companies’
respective Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for
the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund
until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company’s registered capital. The statutory common
reserve fund can be used to make good previous years'
losses, if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to
increase the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the balance after such issue is not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the year
as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations,
to a discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer
to this reserve is subject to approval at shareholders’

meetings.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 2.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the share premium amounts and the
accumulated deficits of the Group pursuant to the
cancellation of share premium account and the capital
reorganization effected on 10 April 2019.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

Convertible bonds reserve

Convertible bonds reserve represents the value of the
conversion rights related to convertible bonds of the
Company, details of which are shown in Note 23. The
reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium accounts upon the conversion of convertible
bonds. For details of the conversion during the year,
please refer to Note 17(b).

Revaluation surplus

The revaluation surplus relates to the increase in
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
upon transfer to investment properties at its then fair

value.

BT HRRMEE

18 f#fE (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

ER A
ERH#EEERREBINETYE
WERFTEEN—VIEREZR -#E
TH IR SE2Fr 8 & 5t BUR BRI

BRI R
BEREGERNEERAETER
RE_S-—NENB+HENTZ
RN EEREIHEAREAEEEE
Z REtBAZ ER ERE -

BEBRE-NAN—F(QEE)
(B1EF]) » A RB 2 BHAERIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

19 SUBSIDIARIES 19 MEBAE
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the TR AR ZZEZ—F+H
Company as at 31 December 2021: =t+—HHNEEWRB AR :
Principal activities
Place of incorporation and  and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
4 B AR Y S IN ] TEEHRESMY  CROAEM/BERE RAZBZ+-BRANERED
2021 2020
—ZC-F 5235
Directly owned subsidiary:
ERBAENEAR:
Dragon Soar Ltd. The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
. Limited liability company the PRC
EINBRAT HERUEHES EREARE REZR TE %7
Ysolde Group Limited Samoa, Limited liability Investment holding, UsD50,000 100% 100%
company the PRC
T+HEREEERAT BED BREEAT REER HE 50,000% 7%
Graceful Universe Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
Limited liability company the PRC
EHEERARAST HERUES EREARE RELZR TE 1£7
ShiFang Expert Company Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Human resources, HKD1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
THEZBRAT &8 BRERAR MER &% 137
Glory Peace Limited Samoa, Limited liability Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
REBRAF BED BREEAT RELER & (B
Supreme Glory Limited Samoa, Limited liability company Investment holding, USD43,521 100% 100%
Beijing, the PRC
EREBRRAF BED BEREMFAH REZR HRELR  43521F%
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
MEREREAR
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of full- line ~ USD200,000 100% 100%
liability company advertising agency
services, Fuzhou,
~ ~ the PRC
BNRRXCEEERAR HERN EREEAT RESLAKS  200,000%7%
RERS > BN
Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of printing ~ RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
liability company services, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BN+ AEBERAT HERN BREEAHF R AL ENRI AR 75 > AE 10,000,000
FEEM
Fuzhou ShiFangYuan Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of full- line  RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
liability company advertising agency
services, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BETHRESERAR HERN BREEAF RELFUES _ AR 5,000,000
RERE REEMN
Fujian DaFang Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of full-line RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
liability company advertising services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEAFEEERAH HERN EREEART %iﬁt%ﬁﬁfﬁé%ﬁ&%’ AE%5,000,0007%
@M
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Name

E2L

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity
ERRAEEYFINV]

BT HRRMEE

19 EBAE (&)

Principal activities

and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held

operation paid up capital as at 31 December

FTEEHRESME  CROAZM/BERE RAZBZ+-BRANERED
2021 2020

—ZT-fF TZOEE

Directly owned subsidiary: (Continued)

EREEMEAR : (B)

Xiamen DuKe Information Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Duke")

EFEZEEHRERAS (EFMEE))

Fujian HaoBang Real Estate Consulting & Agency
Co. Ltd.

BREAEERIANEBRAT

Fujian FangKe Network Technology Corporation Ltd.

BRETRENERABRAT

Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd.
ERNEEEERERAT

Fujian Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

BREMIEEEEERAR

Indirectly owned subsidiaries:

MEEENEAR

Fujian ShiFang Real Estate Investment Consulting
Co., Ltd

BEETHMEREBHERAT

Fuzhou Kungfu Town Scenic Area Development
Co., Ltd.

BMRNEREBREBRAR

Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd.

TREERERRAT

Zhangpingshi Lianchuang Nongye Fazhan Co., Ltd.

EYHHARRERARAT

Fuzhou Niaoyulin Youle Co., Ltd.

BNSENELERAR

Xiamen, the PRC, Limited
liability company

HEEF EREELT
Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability
company

HERN BREEAF

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability
company

hEEMN AREEAR

Hong Kong, Limited liability
company

&8 BERELAF

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited
liability company

mEEM BREEAR

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited
liability company

FERM BREFAR

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited
liability company

FERN EREEAT

Beijing, the PRC, Limited
liability company

mENR AREEAR

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited
liability company

hEEN BREEAR

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited
liability company

mEEN BREEAR

Provision of technology RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
promotion and
consultancy services,
Xiamen, the PRC
RERIHERER AE11,000,0007T
SARE REEM

Property marketing RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
& agency services,
Fuzhou, the PRC

MEEHERAERE> AKEK10,000,0007
HEEM

Provision of full-line RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
advertising services &
Property marketing,
Fuzhou, the PRC
REESFAESRYE  AKEK50,000,0007
RMEEHE > REENM

Investment holding, HKD100 51% 51%
Hong Kong

RELER B 10087

Property marketing RMB10,000,000 - 51%
& agency services, (Note a)
Fuzhou, the PRC (Mista)

MEEHERAERY > AKHK10,000,0007
FEEM

Property investment RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
consultancy services,
Fuzhou, the PRC

MELEEARE  AKE50,000,0007
FEEM

Tourism and USD25,000,000 100% 100%
entertainment,
Fuzhou, the PRC

TR R4 REIEM  25,000,000% 7T

Tourism and RMB5,000,000 100% 100%

entertainment,
Beijing, the PRC
RERRE RELR  ARES,000,0007

Tourism and RMB10,000,000 60% 60%
entertainment,
Fuzhou, the PRC

TR RS REEMN AKH10,000,0007

Tourism and RMB5,000,000 82% 82%
entertainment,
Fuzhou, the PRC

MR RS REEMN AKES,000,0007

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19

Principal activities

B 2B (%)

Place of incorporation and  and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
o ERPAEEYHINY] FTEEHRESMY  CROAEM/BERE RAZBZ+-BRANERED
2021 2020
ZZT-fF -3
Fuzhou Mobile Media Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of mobile RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
liability company media services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BNBBEREERAR FREGN BREEAT RUBHERRY  AKE10,000,0007
FEEM
Huaxian Fangke Real Estate Consulting & Huaxian, the PRC, Limited Property marketing RMB100,000 51% 51%
Agency Co. Ltd. liability company & agency services,
o Huaxian, the PRC
BHREERMEAARAIEERAR FEER BREMAR %ﬁ“iﬁ)ﬂ/zﬁ@ﬁﬁ% AE100,0007T
EF 2 /E‘%‘ﬂ
Special purpose entity:
RHENER:
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Beijing, the PRC, Limited Provision of technology RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. liability company promotion and
consultancy services,
Beijing the PRC
TREEEERKAERAR FEE R BREEAR RERIERR AR 1,000,0007T
HARE PEILR
Note a: The subsidiary was deregistered on 29 September 2021. Mzka: ZMBABIRZ-ZZ—F N A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19 EBAE (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests () ERIEER®ES
2021 2020
—E-—F —BTEH
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETFTT
By subsidiaries: KB ABNERXR
FEER R

Fujian Fangke Network Technology BIEEERERE KRN
Co. Ltd (“Fujian Fangke"”) BREARE (BEEE) 13,048 12,848
Others Hih (6,942) (5,346)
6,106 7,502

Summarised financial information on a

subsidiary with material non-controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information
for a subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that

are material to the Group.

BEEERFEREZNEL
BINMBEERSE
TXEINHEERAEEMSBE
ROFEREZMNENELABMN
MBERHE -

=1 Sk =
Summarised balance sheets for Fujian Fangke BERENRERARAE
2021 2020
—E_—F “ETEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Current; R
Assets HE 85,911 34,706
Liabilities aE (59,709) (9,570)
Net current assets REEEFE 26,202 25,136
Non-current: JEREN -
Assets BHE 1,593 53,558
Liabilities aE (1,166) (52,473)
Net assets BEEFE 26,629 26,221

THERERAR

T —FFHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19

B 2B (%)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) BARIEZERELZT (B)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income EEEENEZENRERME
for Fujian Fangke
2021 2020
—g_—f —ECEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR¥ETF T
Revenue Wz 74,943 55,218
Profit before income tax BRP 1S 1R AT # A 686 942
Income tax expense FriSinf (277) (48)
Profit for the year B A im A 408 894
Other comprehensive income Htt =2 mlas - -
Total comprehensive income L HEEARER 408 894
Total comprehensive income allocated DEEIFERETD
to non-controlling interests T EWEARER 200 438

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19 EBAE (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) BERIEERER (B)
Summarised cash flow statements for Fujian EEEENHERERME
Fangke
2021 2020
—g_—f —EIEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTT
Net cash (used in)/generated REES (FTA) /P8
from operating activities IREF5R (1,612) 38
Net cash used in from investing activities & & EBIFFAIREF48 (17) (1)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEPTAIRE R = (26)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeMBEEEEHEE
cash equivalents CRiZL) /18107358 (1,629) 11
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#MNRERIREEEERH
of year 6,511 6,500
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year AW RIEEEEIER 4,882 6,511
+HEERERAT T —FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EEFRIZI
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: BIEFTS BB DT !
2021 2020
—EZ—%F —ETEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTS M EE
— to be reversed after more than 12 months  —#& BB 1218 B % =] 632 43,948
— to be reversed within 12 months — R 1218 B LA 256 1,569
888 45,517
The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as FIEFTSMBaBEsUT !
follows:
Fair value
change in
Intangible relation to
assets properties Total
BRME
B EE ARELES “Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2020 A\ ZEZEF—A—H 50,412 = 50,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries B AR 1,396 - 1,396
Revaluation gain for property, plant and ~ #1% B E KRB HE GG
equipment (Note 7) (MF5E7) = 877 877
Recognised in the consolidated statement 1 & ff & E UL & & A FE 2
of comprehensive income (Note 30) (K35E30) (7,168) = (7,168)
At 31 December 2020 R_E_BF+_H
=+—H 44,640 877 45,517
Recognised in the consolidated statement F & f#f & E U & & A FER
of comprehensive income (Note 30) (B¥5E30) (43,752) (877) (44,629)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+"H
=+—H 888 - 888
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in RIEBEZ—F+"A=+—HB > BHRAE
respect of estimated tax losses of RMB99,831,000 as at 31 EEHEBMNBATN AR ELEEE
December 2021 (2020: RMB91,446,000) as it is not probable HoaA UR e B RF BIRIEEE K
that the relevant subsidiaries of the Group will generate ItE 6 i A R1599,831,0007t (ZEZF
taxable profit to utilise the tax losses in the foreseeable F 1 AR91,446,0007T) KU st R I8 &S
future. Such tax losses have an expiry period of five years. ERDIREMSEREE ZERNIEEE
B EmEAE A R F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

21 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

21 BHEMARIE HthEARIE

ACCRUED EXPENSES KFEET RS
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETZHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Trade payables gZldm=E 12,790 11,781
Other payables and accrued expenses: HME A RIEREFTRZ
Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities ~ FEstA LB MR K
Hth&a | 3,138 8,493
Accrued salaries and welfare fE st & RER 17,430 12,303
Value added tax and other taxes payable BERREMENRIE 1,153 1,301
Other payables H (I w18 72,869 67,060
Deposits from customers REFREE 1,441 1,448
Down payment of assets classified DTRARELEEEN
as held for sale B RIE 8,539 =
Contract liabilities (Note 5) EXEE (MisE5) 19,194 9,741
123,764 100,346
Less: Non-current portion W JEBNHRER
Other payables HME R I8 - (52,000)
N 100
136,554 60,127

THERERAR

T —FFHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

21 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 21
ACCRUED EXPENSES (Continued)
Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly cash on
delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30 days
to 365 days after end of the month in which the relevant

purchase occurred.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice

date is as follows:

B 5% B (IRIE Ht 4 mRIA
K et (48)

HEBBTNAREREEAE G R
R BURERR 75 2 A3 K o 15 £ HA e 1R th A
B E B EREH N FI0AE365HF

Pavas
Fe

B EAMBEREEZEANRE DN
L1

2021 2020
—E_—&F _EBECTHE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFTT

1 — 30 days 1230H
31 - 90 days 31E90H
Over 90 days 90H MU

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are all

denominated in RMB.

1,006 2,593
5,896 909
5,888 8,279
12,790 11,781

AEWERERENREERHUA
RUssHE-

22 BORROWINGS 22 8
2021 2020
—E—fF ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBETT
Secured bank borrowings BEFRIBITEMR
— current (Note (i)) —BIHA (MFEEG)) 5,900 17,410
Unsecured bank borrowings EERIBITER
— current (Note (ii)) —BDER (B 5E(ii)) 450 450
6,350 17,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (i):

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and excluding the repayment

on demand clause is as follows:

BT HRRMEE

22 f&m (&)

P 5 :

1R IR E 17 & P 8 TR E B X B B > M4 PR AR
EREZEEF LARBITERNEHAOT ¢

2021 2020

% —ETTHF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR#EF T

Within 1 year —FR 5,900 17,229
Between 1 and 2 years —EWMEFE - 181
5,900 17,410

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings were classified as
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional
right to call the loans at any time.

The Group's bank borrowings are secured by the ownership rights
of the properties and the personal guarantee of Zheng Bai Ling and
Zhang Hui, a key management and the spouse of a key management
of a subsidiary of the Group. The guarantee provided by Mr. Zheng
Bai Ling and Zhang Hui was released as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings carried fixed
rates and are denominated in RMB. The fixed rate is 3.98%. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings carried fixed
and variable rates and are denominated in RMB. The fixed rate is
3.98%. The variable rates subject to either (1) quarterly adjusted
floating interest rate of 1.15 times the benchmark loan interest rate
as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a similar
length (2) 2-months adjusted floating interest rate of the benchmark
loan interest as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans
of a similar length. The effective interest rate for the year range
from 3.85% to 7.40% per annum.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group failed to repay a
bank borrowing of RMB5,900,000 in full in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates of the underlying bank borrowings
agreement. Consequently, a principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest
of RMB6,000 became overdue. The Overdue Bank Borrowings
are secured by the Group's property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of RMB6,928,000 as at 31 December 2021.

R ZE_—F+-HA=+—H HRZZFIR
TREIANEAERDEZHAEREREER
T IRIT R RN BEREBWER MZ
ERBERNBEARNEE-

FEBBITERUZNENRBERUAREE
E—ENEASNEIEZEEASEBENE
2 EE A BN MERIER HENEAERELR
oM EERRBRHENERER -
——H+"A=+—H#%k-

AT —F+ZA=+—H > AE@RIT
EBRZEEMNESE  UARBFE -EE
MEAIIGEB-N_BE_ZTFE+_H=+—
B A& EIRITERIREE M E R T EHH =
TR UAREEE B ERMNEA3.98E ¥
BRI EANFPEARBITHREUFHEERR
EREEERFEN A 8FHE ; 3(2)
FEARIBITHREUFHETRENEEES
FEE SMERARE FRERFENENF
3.85[EE7.40E

A TE - —F+ZHA=1+—HEB XEEX
AERBEEABRTERMENBECERE S
*%Mﬁii&fﬂaﬂAEmS 900,0007G ° A
It A% AR #3,900,000T KA B AR
6,000t E A A - B HAIR T B U KR E BN
T+ A=+—HEREEAARE
6,928,0007C ¥ 2= ~ B 5 K 52 S VR4 45 o

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

23

Note (ii):

As at 31 December 2021, the balance is unsecured, carries an
interest rate at 9.22% (2020: 4.5%) per annum with a term of 1
year, and is repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in
RMB.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the

convertible bond subscription agreement with TopBig
International Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi, an Executive
Director and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 3% per
annum convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is
HK$0.24 per conversion share. The Convertible Bonds
matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of

the Convertible Bonds and ending on the maturity date.

On 23 April 2019, the Convertible Bonds were issued. The
initial value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond

of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 23 AR ES (@)
The convertible bonds are presented as follows: AMRESZ5WT .
2021 2020
—EB_—F —EIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT AR®ETT

At 1 January w—A—H 168,148 150,669
Interest accrued (Note (a)) FEstF B (fPsE(a)) 19,096 17,479
Conversion during the year (Note (b)) FRER (MEEb)) (5,888) =

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 181,356 168,148

Notes: Mok :

(@) Interest expense is calculated by applying the effective interest () FMERZWEEHEBBEHBHHEAI.5
rate of 11.5% per annum to the liability component. ENERENEAEEH -

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, convertible by BEZE-_ZE-_—F+-_B=+—H
bonds with carrying amount of RMB5,888,000 were EFE FBEAREATEARE
converted by the Subscriber based on its principal amount of 7,108,000t HiRIEEmEA AR
RMB7,108,000 (Note 17). 5,888,000 TR A AR (E 25 (P45E17) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

24 LEASE 24 1HE
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REHEEaRREIBZMIEA
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following EHEEEBBREVUTERA
amounts relating to leases: BE2MIE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
RIEZ—F RIZZTEHF
+ZA +=A
=+—H E—E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®ETT
Right-of-use assets ERHEEE
Buildings BF 624 1,008
Lands T+ 2,617 4,203
3,241 5,211
Lease liabilities HEaE
Current BPHA 2,036 2,438
Non-current JEBNHA 4,694 5,177
6,730 7,615
Additions to the right-of-use asset for the year ended HE-_Z-_—F+-"HB=+—H
31 December 2021 were RMB510,000 (2020: Nil). LFEERAEEEEMNMARS

510,00070° (ZE_T4F | ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 LEASE (Continued)

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet (Continued)

The Group recognised an impairment charge reflecting
the aggregate difference totalling RMB1,550,000
(2020: RMB239,000) recognised for the right-of-use
assets for the year ended 31 December 2021. Details
of impairment of RMB1,550,000 (2020: RMB239,000)
recognised for right-of-use assets are disclosed in Note
9(b). These impairment charges were recorded in the
Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
show the following amounts relating to leases:

BT HRRMEE

24 #HE (&)

(i)

(ii)

REHEEEERERZX
(&)
BHE_Z”_—F+“H=+—H
IFFE REBMEREEERD
REAREZERENRERZEEAR
#%1,550,0007c (ZZ2ZZFF | AR
#239,0007T) ° BLE AR E E R
BRI E A RH1,550,0007 (Z =
=T AR#¥239,00070) BIzEIER
FI5E9(b)35 B2 o 52 F R E R SZ 5T A
AEBEHE2EWmER-

REHZEWHERATESL ZMK
b |
afemBARZINUTAREE
28

2021 2020
—E-—% —EBIETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Depreciation charge of FHEEERNERS !
right-of-use assets:
Buildings BF 686 640
Land T 244 306
930 946
Gain on early termination on leases EEARIEHEENW S - 1,947
Interest expense HERZ
(included in finance costs) Gt AR FE R A) 315 478
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no gain BHE_ ST _—F+-_RB=+—
on early termination on leases was recognised (2020: BIEFEE: ﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ RE#&IEHA
RMB1,947,000). ENlmE (CTTE2EFARE

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were
RMB 1,680,000 and RMB2,235,000, respectively.

1,947,0007T) ©

BHE_Z_—F#+_-_A=+—H
kRZEBEZEFE+_A :+—E|Jt
FEHEZRE ML 2 ball
%Aﬁw,eso,oooE&)\Eﬁ%
2,235,0007z °

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

25 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN 25 Htht A K EH il ==
2021 2020
“E-—fF C"BCBE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETT

Other income: Hg A :
Government grants (Note a) BT B (FdsEa) 629 2,844
Sundry income EIE U A 321 100
950 2,944
Other gain: Hhras
Fair value gain on biological asset EMEEZ A RERT 119 211
Note MTJLEE
(@) The Group obtained and recognised as income government @ BEZB_—HF+_A=+—HLF
grants of RMB629,000 (2020: RMB2,844,000) from the Fujian [ > 252 [ B i o AL 48 722 IE T 446 R A R
government authority for the year ended 31 December 2021. B Bh A R #629,00070 (Z 2 —

T8 1 AK152,844,0007T) #ULA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

26 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Loss before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

26 BEHESHRX

PRPTISIR AT A B ER, (Bt A) LU IE

following: BBAR:
2021 2020
g —F —E2TE2HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARETIT
Cost of newspaper and public vehicles W BEEEES A
advertising
- Media costs — IR A 9,265 5,557
Cost of printing services: ENRI AR 75 A A -
- Raw materials — R 1,875 1,853
— Other costs —HMp A 668 408
Cost of sales of agricultural products HEERERME 154,698 50,778
Depreciation of property, M -BERREBEITE
plant and equipment (Note 7) O EXD) 3,880 4,911
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 24) fEEEEENE (M5E24) 930 946
Amortisation (Note 9) #iH (k) 3,567 5,830
Auditor’s remuneration Z B EMEN & 3,474 3,821
Gain on early termination of lease (Note 24) IER&RIEFAERMWE (Mi5E24) - (1,947)
Marketing expenses iR 24,080 6,366
Operating lease charges in respect of ERLtHREFHNEERE
land and buildings g1 1,270 634
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERFREN
equipment (Note 33(b)) B8 358 (M95E33(b)) 123 6,533
Gain on disposals of properties held for sale HEFIEHEYEN KT (49) (203)
Net change in provision for impairment of M ERBEREEE
financial guarantee R EE (245) (408)
Net fair value gain on financial assets at NABELSERRAKRNER
fair value through profit or loss (Note 14) BENABEW @ FER
(MI5E14) 868 399
Net change in provision for impairment of THRERENEERBERSE
financial and contract assets EAE) 5 AR 1,796 (6,107)
Provision for impairment on property, Y2 BRI E
plant and equipment (Note 7) O EXD) (8,818) (6,145)
Provision for impairment on right-of-use assets A E E R (E & E
(Note 24) (MF5E24) (1,550) (239)
Provision for impairment on goodwill and mEREMBTEERE
other intangible assets (Note 9) B (5E9) (161,318) (21,546)
Legal and professional fee FEMREEER 1,969 827
(Recovery of previously written-off)/ (WK EI AT M E 5
written-off trade receivables (Note 15) FEW IS (MIsE15) (35) 2,000
Net foreign exchange losses SMEE RS TE R ER 1,745 3,671
Employee benefit expenses BERMHZ (BIEEEME)
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 27) (f5E27) 27,125 31,485
Business tax EER 252 101
+AERERAT —T_—F5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS)

27 EERHHAX (BFEEFM=)

2021 2020
“B-—& C"EC-EfF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Salaries and other allowances s M B e

Defined contribution plan FRE MG

(a) Five highest paid individuals
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group included 2 directors (2020: 2 directors), whose
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented
above and Note 40. The emoluments paid/payable to
the remaining 3 (2020: 3 individuals) individuals during

the year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:

(a)

24,897 29,771
2,228 1,714
27,125 31,485

hBREHAL

BE_SE”_—F+°“A=+—H
IEE AEBELREFHFATE
EMAES (CE2ZF  MBE
) > HENMEE X KRMIEF40
FIEF Mot R -REEZS
——H+ZHB=+—HIEEE B
T/ EBEGET =2 (CESF .
=%) ATHBEIT -

2021 2020
—sS-—% —E ST
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Salaries and other allowances e M Hfhw BG
Defined contribution plan REMRETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 27 EEfEFHX: (BEEEME)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) () BBEEHAL @
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HE_Z-_ KT ZHF
the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the +_BA=+—HIEEFEE xEER
Group fall within the following bands: B ALTHMEN T TIRE !

Number of individuals

A¥
2021 2020
—E-— -—zZ-®
Nil to HK$500,000 £ F500,00078 7T - 2
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 TE
1,000,000 75 3 1
3 3
28 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 28 RIKEFIEHE
The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in AKEBTEFRBEKIINHBREINEES
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated 1 75 T3 AT P B 9 R DR AR (R < 5T 1 AY
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are HRE BB AR EREEELFH =
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ RITENETBERLEAAFREBAREEE
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme R DU AR AR AE F o 1 75 77 U 7K
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal HAEERNBATNMARAE RARK
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits BREENEREINEE - FRANER
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of B R IUR R B S BN — S E TR
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries STEIEH PTARE BN
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the
required contributions under the scheme.
The total contributions incurred in this connection for BHE_FE_—&F+"8A=+—H1
the year ended 31 December 2021 were approximately FE MLELEENEREENA AR
RMB2,228,000 (2020: RMB1,714,000). No forfeited %2,228,000c (ZE=FF : AR
contributions are available to reduce the contribution 1,714,0007z) o BEEL UL MR AT A 1E R
payable by the Group in the future years. DRIRFEAREBEMHER

+rERERAR —=-—sx% 219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

29 FINANCE COSTS — NET

29 BAFSR A —FEE

2021 2020
—E—F —EIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ABEBTT
Finance income: BRSO -
Interest income on short-term bank deposits ~ f@HISR{TEMBIFISHA 53 59
Finance costs: MR
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERZHEMZ (520) (456)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaEZFERX (315) (478)
Interest expense on loan from a shareholder ZHRE—ZRBREMNERZFE
s (28) =
Interest expense on convertible bond MR ESHERE (19,096) (17,479)
Total finance costs AR RN A 48 58 __(19,959)  (18,413)
Finance costs — net PRSP A —F8R (19,906) (18,354)
30 INCOME TAX CREDIT 30 FRiGRIER
2021 2020
—E_—F —EIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Current income tax expense BERPRIS AR A 2
Mainland China enterprise income tax R B oA B 1 ZE PSR
— Current tax expense —BENEAMR B X (277) (48)
— Overprovision in prior years —RiIBEFEBREEE - 11,507
(277) 11,459
Deferred income tax credit FIEFTIS IR R 44,629 7,168
44,352 18,627

The Group has no assessable income arising in or derived
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 30
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as

BHMHFRRMEE

FRGRIER ()

A B P8 AT AS B R IERUR A B
FARESEREER A G EIEHT K
RPEOREMHEEREB L BNEE
m

follows:
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ABEBTT
Loss before income tax FRPTS TR AR5 18 (233,216) (93,166)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable BHEANRSER A ke ERE
to profits of the entities in the respective wm A B 75 AR E E B
jurisdictions (Note) I8 (fFsE) 55,546 20,714
Tax effects of: UTFEENMREBELE .
Income not subject to tax TR G N 977 1,122
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AEMHfR (6,223) (7,198)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax I EREDIELEFTIFINE E
asset was recognised MR IER 18 (5,955) (7,681)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax R Z A AR FEEE
losses R IEE 18 7 163
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBIERE - 11,507
44,352 18,627
Note: Mzt -

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.8% (2020:
22.2%). The increase is mainly caused by less operation for
subsidiaries in Hong Kong which were entitled to lower applicable

tax rate.

MEFHBEBRARNER238% (T2 -2F
222%) - MEELRTEZHANAR=ZAREE
BAMENEBNE AR EFRM DA -

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

31 LOSS PER SHARE 31 BiREIE
(a) Basic (o) E=&
Basic loss per share for the years is calculated by FRANERELAERBBEERAE
dividing the loss attributable to owners of the FTEERLBERUFEANBEET
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary ZRERMNEFE IO E -
shares in issue during the year.
2021 2020
—E—% —ECESF
Loss attributable to owners of NABIFREEELEE
the Company (RMB'000) (ANE T 7T) (187,468) (73,784)
Weight average number of BTN INEFHEH
shares in issue (thousands) (Fr) 923,922 829,830
Basic loss per share (RMB per share) BRELAEBE (BRARDE) (0.2029) (0.0889)
(b) Diluted (b) #&
loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted SR EHEBIVIZAEEITEIN
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to ZER RN F U EBR ﬁﬁﬁ
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary BEETBERENTARER
shares. The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary BB - BE_Z-_—F+°AH
shares during the year ended 31 December 2021 —t+—BLFE - AramEA
(2020: same). BEBEZENTER CEZE
F MR °
32 DIVIDEND 32 KRR

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its

incorporation.
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33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

FLOWS

(a)

Cash used in operations

(a)

33 WEMERME

EBFRRARE

2021 2020
—E2-F “EIEF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
i ARETR ARETT
Loss before income tax bRET SRR 1B (233,216) (93,166)
Adjustments for: TS IBEHRE .
Depreciation for property, plant and ME--BERREINE
equipment 7 3,880 4,911
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FRARBEENE 24 930 946
Amortisation for intangible assets B E 9 3,567 5,830
Net loss on disposal of property, plant  HEY¥ M E K
and equipment RENEIRFEE 26 123 6,533
Net gain on disposal of properties held &+ {EH EM 2R
for sale Wz 3 EE 26 (49) (203)
Net change in provision for B S RWGIERERE
impairment of trade receivables HE)F 15 (1,800) 6,135
Net change in provision for BRNEERERSE
impairment of contract assets bk ek 5 4 (28)
Provision for impairment of goodwill ~ BEKEREEHNERZE
and intangible assets 9 161,318 21,546
Provision for impairment of property, ~ #%EK&
plant and equipment RERERE 7 8,818 6,145
Provision for impairment of right-of- RS EREREE
use assets 24 1,550 239
Gain on early termination of lease RELLHEEN KRG 26 - (1,947)
Foreign exchange losses on operating A% E B A M E
activities B 26 1,745 3,671
Finance income A 29 (53) (59)
Finance costs B A 29 19,959 18,413
Fair value gain on biological assets EMBEN A NERE 25 (119) 211)
(Recovery of previously written-off)/ (KRB SCRiHsE) /HHE
written-off trade receivables 5 FEURERIB 26 (35) 2,000
Net fair value gain on financial assets A ELEFRAKRN
at fair value through profit or loss THEENANE
W i % 2R 14 (868) (399)
+rERERAR —T-—s55 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

33 WEMERME (&)

(a) Cash used in operations (Continued) (o) REEXEBFRARE (@)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B =E AR%T ANEE&T T
Changes in working capital: EEBTET .
— Trade receivables — B 5 ERFIA 1,803 (487)
— Contract assets —GHNEE 1,097 252
— Inventories —F&8 188 119
— Prepayments, deposits and other —FBURE - EEK
receivables H g Is 2,978 2,311
— Amounts due from related parties —FEURREE A TFIE 1,273 (159)
— Trade payables —BREMRIE 1,009 2,254
— Other payables and accrued —HMENRIER
expenses fEstREs2 15,302 6,991
- Financial guarantee contracts —BEREHN (245) (408)
— Amounts due to related parties —E(IRIE AN LFUIE 6,165 2,833
Cash used in operations KExBmARE (4,676) (5,938)
(b) Disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEME -KBERKHE

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds

from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

EHBEESRERTHENE KE
RERBHFERBEEE !

2021 2020

—E—% BB

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEBTT

Net carrying amount (Note 7) IRmEFEE (f5E7) 123 6,533
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BB REHN

plant and equipment (Note 26) 518988 (MY5E26) (123) (6,533)
Cash consideration from disposal of HEME BERFREN

property, plant and equipment HeAE = -

224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Non-cash transactions
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no

major non-cash transactions occurred.

(c)

BHMHFRRMEE

33 WEMERME (&)

FRERH
BE_BE_—SAZEZHF
+TZR=+—HLEEFEE UEZHE
TEFRRERNF

(d) Net debt reconciliation (d) EFFEHIE
The following section sets out an analysis of net debt MTHINEHEZELITREZ
and the movements in net debt for each of the years FEEXEFENEES-
presented.
2021 2020
—E-_-—& _—B-Z&
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Net debt B REE AREBFT ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) RERREEBIER
(MI5E16) 8,851 12,889
Bank borrowings RITE™R (6,350) (17,860)
Convertible bonds AR A (181,356) (168,148)
Lease liabilities HESR (6,730) (7,615)
Loan from a shareholder kB —HRENER (1,500) =
Net debt (L (187,085) (180,734)
+AERERART T —F45R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

33 WEMERME (&)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (d) EFEFIEHER (B)
Cash Loan
and cash Bank Other froma Convertible Lease
equivalents  borrowing  borrowing shareholder bond liabilities Total
ReRAE RE—%
%EEE  HER EfER RRNEFR THREF 0 HEER Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTT AREBTr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Net debt as at RZZ2Z%%-F—H
1 January 2020 MEEFE 9,753 (4,640) (1,590) - (150,669) (12,225) (159,371)
Cash flows Réne 1,868 (13,203) 1,590 - - 2,235 (7,510)
Non-cash movements: FREED !
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—-BINEAE 1,289 - - - - - 1,289
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMNEZEE (21) - - - - 2 1
Other non-cash movements HitEReg - (17) = = (17,479) 2,353 (15.143)
Net debt as at RZIEZZE
31 December 2020 +ZA=+-AH
WERZE 12,889 (17,860) - - (168,148) (7,615) (180,734)
Net debt as at RZEZ-£-B-H
1 January 2021 WERSE 12,88 (17,860) - - (168148) (7615  (180,734)
Cash flows Reng (4,091) 11,510 - (1,500) - 1,680 7,599
Non-cash movements: FREEY .
Foreign exchange adjustments  SMNEZEE 53 - - - - 30 83
Other non-cash movements HitEREEH - - = = (13,208) (825) (14,033)
Net debt as at RIBZ-%
31 December 2021 +-B=+-H
NEHTE 8,851 (6,350) - (1,500) (181,356) (6,730) (187,085)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

BT HRRMEE

34 KiE
(o) EHERERE—IFHLBA
RO HHEEREN D ®RER
EWHEEDT

2021 2020
—E—F _E=
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AEETT AREFT
Not later than 1 year — &R 1,253 1,205
Later than 1 year and not later than —FUERAEFUTF
5 years 5,536 5,323
More than five years EEMUE = 1,466
6,789 7,994
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RBEEARBITNERERAE
end of the reporting period but not recognised as BZEAREXREZWT :
liabilities is as follows:
2021 2020
—EF—% —ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment L EN V=N 4,266 4,266

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.

35 AEALRS
MZEEHUBERRMS HEALE
RENEAEEFEMBREERREE
RYEBEHAEERRMEARE (RZ
D‘Vﬁ) " ZATRRRABEANEERR

oRIEALTAIURMEAN BIEEEEA
8 EEKHR%EZ/EZTE£E’\JL¥E) A
ER -HMAEEMNEEALTAEA Y
MEATTEERIBEALTEARE
NERE -HAMBERZIHERFEZESG IR
WA EREA Lo

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35 MEALR S (@)

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties

that had transactions or balances with the Group

KRBEERR ZEREEALRSES
RAEXEHBRETRRAEREKFE
AT HBEEBERET

(a) "RABEZRA UTAB @
NEBERBE_ZE_—F+_4H
Zt+—HIEEERNEREBET

during the year ended 31 December 2021:

RPUFHEEFNEEAL !

Name Relationship with the Group

%iE R SARE BRI R

Mr. Chen Zhi Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ") of the Group

[t RABPITES AEBTEAER (MMTELEE)

Ms. Zheng Shou Ling

Erhew L

Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology Co., Ltd

BRETAHEBRMABRAS

Fujian Lanting Network Technology
Holding Limited Company

EERRNERABERRNERAT

TopBig International Development Limited

ATEREEBRAR
Mr. Yu Shi Quan

R E

Mr. Chen Wei Dong
PRERTE

Ms. Chen Min
BRELL £

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Spouse of the Executive director of the Company/Chief
Executive Office of the Group

RABPITES AEBTHARBNE R

Controlled by the Executive director of the Group

RAEENITESZES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

rEE-FNBAENTIEZRE

A company controlled by the Executive Director of the
Company

AARBHITESEZEFN—BAE

Executive director of the Company/Chief Financial
Officer of the Group

ERBHTES AEBEFEVBEE

Non-executive director of the Company

KRBIFPITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RABFFRITES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2021: (Continued)

BHMHFRRMEE

35 MAZEALR S (@)

(a) XABEFERA UTAAE
ABRBEE_ZE-_—5+_A81
=+—BLFEEREXRERET
RN FEEFNBAEAL (@)

Name Relationship with the Group

wiE R S & B AIRA 7

Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
BREREBERRAS REE-—FHNBEATNEERE

Ms. Chan Ching Yi Key management of the Group

BREFFEYL T rEEFEEEAE

Ms. Chen Xiao Min Key management of the Group

FR/ B2t FEBFEEERAE

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling Key management of the Group

RGeSt TEEFEEEAE

Mr. Cai Jian Quan Independent non-executive director of the Company
sERERLE RRABBIUFNITES

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren Independent non-executive director of the Company
BEICEE RKRABBIUFNITES

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry Independent non-executive director of the Company
=M@AKE RABBIUFNITES

Mr. Chen Ye Son of Mr. Chen Zhi, Executive director of the Company/

Chief Executive Officer of the Group
IR PEE 5t AE RATRTES HEBTRERRELEZT

The above names of certain related parties companies
represented the best effort by management of the
Company in translating their Chinese names as they do

not have official English names.

FHEFREAEAL A ATNEX
LREREHARBDEEEMUNHEP XA
BMENBEMRESE REEEREA
T/ RABEEEREXLTE

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties:

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the following transactions were AEEBRBEEZZZ

undertaken by the Group with related parties during

35 MEALR S (@)

(b) HRMEALETHRS:

PR B REME D PAIREE N
—F+=R
St HLEFERBEATES

the year ended 31 December 2021: MTFR5:
2021 2020
—E_—F =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ANREETF T
Key management compensation FEBEEASFHM 3,347 5,188
Lease payment to a related party m—fAEATHEENTR 465 465
3,812 5,653
(c) Balances with related parties (c) HEAZEALTHEBEREER
2021 2020
—E—F —ETEHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥EF T
Amounts due from related parties FEURRAZE A L FIE
- non-trade —EES
Key management of the Group AEBTEEEAS - 1,273
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the balances are

unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

BHMHFRRMEE

35 MAZEALR S (@)

(c)

HRAEANTEFEENGER (8)
NI - —FE_ T _TFE+—
B=+—H &HA2EEHF &

KRB KIEE ©
2021 2020
—E—F —EIEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AEEBTT ANREEF T
Amounts due to directors: FE{TEERIA :
Mr. Chen Zhi RS e 11,829 9,724
Mr. Yu Shi Quan REHESE 2,336 1,235
Ms. Chen Min 3, gogmm 270 150
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry =mmARLE 270 150
Mr. Cai Jian Quan HEESTE 270 150
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BEfk4E 270 150
Mr. Chen Wei Dong BRZER L 270 150
15,515 11,709
Amounts due to related parties: FE{TRAEAN L RIA ©
Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited HEES{EEIERREAT 127 127
Ms. Zheng Shou Ling ER<FHe Lt 687 458
Fujian Lanting Network Technology 1R R E A B AL A 1
Holding Limited Company BRAF 530 554
Mr. Chen Ye PR B 5 = 1,390 458
Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology Co., Ltd f&Z+ 58S M AR AT 7 =
Key management of the Group rERFEEEAR 1,215 -
19,471 13,306
THERERAT T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AEALRS (8

(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c)
The balances due to directors and related parties are
unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term
and repayable upon mutual agreement between the

Group and the directors and related parties.

BRAEANTFEENGR (B)
BNEERBEEALHNERSE
R 2 B R IR B E B 0
ARAEBEEERFAEALTHN
BEWREE -

2021 2020
—E_—F =S
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETT

Loan from a shareholder RE—LBRENER
TopBig International Development Limited FFEE % EARAE

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, carries
interest rate at 5% per annum, and are repayable in

two years from the drawdown date.

1,500 =

E—BRRERAEIRR &
FHRSEH B RANIRERABRIE
SAMERER

36 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 36 PHEARKELHEERE
The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement AREERBIFE=FIILBEEREUZ
with an independent third party to dispose of certain of RBARK28,000,0007 HEEHNBA
the properties held in its subsidiary at consideration of BRAENEGETWE MEBRYEESRZ
RMB28,000,000 and the relevant properties had been ZT—F+ZA=+—HOoEAFEY
classified as assets classified as held for sale as at 31 EEE-REAN AEBRIFNRE
December 2021. During the year, the Group received down AR #8,539,0007T °

payment amounted to RMB8,539,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

37

(Continued)

The associated assets were presented as held for sale as at
31 December 2021:

36 PEARKMELERE (B

BHMHFRRMEE

N_Z_—F+"B=+—H HEEAE
E2VAFHEHE :

2021
—E-—f
RMB’000
ARBTT
Assets classified as held for sale SEARFHERE
Investment properties (Note 8) KEYE (HI5E8) 26,681

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 "Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine
when should contingent liabilities be recognised, which

requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed
by future events outside the Group’s control, or when it
is not possible to calculate the amount. Realisation of any
contingent liabilities not currently recognised or disclosed
could have a material impact on the Group's financial

position.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no

material contingent liabilities.

37 AR

7 22 [ R P o S+ ) 553798 TR
SEEERNEEE W53 TR A
B RESREE 8 > AR SBBS A MR B A
18 o

ERFEELEERT EEFERSRE
BIFRNEBPTEERIFIRIREFHEE
HEFREFEEZTM IR EH
BENERR -EABEMAREEDAIKE
WHEEE-—BEER AN AER
IR ERERTE

K _B_—FrR_B_FF+_-A
=t+—R - AERETESERHEAER-

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

38 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(i)

(i)

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group failed
to repay a bank in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates of the underlying bank borrowings
agreement (the “Overdue Bank Borrowings”), including
principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest of RMB6,000.
The Overdue Bank Borrowings are secured by the
Group's property, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of RMB6,928,000.

The Group is in active negotiation with the bank in
respect of the Overdue Bank Borrowings for renewal,
extension and replacement of the relevant bank
borrowings and the directors are confident that

agreements will be reached in due course.

The COVID-19 outbreak that led to a series of severe
administrative control and precautionary measures
taken by governments and authorities in Mainland
China temporarily disrupted the operations of the
Group's various business and in particular the progress
of the Group’s tourism and integrated development
has been delayed. Management expects that the
China’s government would launch additional proactive
economic and monetary policies to stimulate its
economic cycle and is confident that the Group’s

operation will recover in 2022.
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38 HiIREIH

(i)

(i)

AT —F+"B=+—H%"
AEBERERBEARITERD
ENEEERBHERTER (M
HIRITER)  BREAEARKE
3,900,000t & ] B A K #6,000
Lo BMARITERMUANEBREE
A ANR 16,928,000 I ¥ ~ i
B E IR

7 £ B IE 7E L 78 B SR 1T 5 AR B2 4R
TRBEEUEE - LTEKREHRAE
HIRTTER EFHEIRBER
R R 1A 5%

COVID-19%& & & 5 A B A P U
Fe e RA PR EY — R I BR AR 1T BB
B BB AEBSEERN
B LHREETAEENIRE
REGEREXBERE -BIEEHE
5 PFEBN# L & FLBmAK
R B ER LR E KK 1B
B UHEEAEENERER -2
“ZFiiEe



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 39 xRTINEBEEEBERRH#EG
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY £ E)
2021 2020
B —%F “ETEHF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR%T T AR¥T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBATNKE 19 - 120,538
_________ By 120538
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR R IE B E A
& W =R I8 119 332
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI ES 92,133 134,990
Cash and cash equivalents HWEMIREEEEB 32 24
_____ 92,284 135346
Total assets WEE 92,284 255,884
EQUITY T
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAFEE AELER
Company
Share capital [ 8,065 7,769
Share premium 1R mE 55,796 48,820
Other reserves HhE A a 188,416 189,799
Accumulated deficits RET A4l a (375,804) (185,578)
Total (deficits)/equity (B54t) RS 4R%E (123,527) 60,810
+rERERAR —=- 55w 235



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRMEE

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 39 xRTINEBEEEBERRH#EG
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY EEH (&)
(Continued)
2021 2020
—E-—% “EIEHF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B = AR T AREFIT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES = 168,148
Lease liabilities HEERE 1,189 1,355
______ 1189 169,503
Current liabilities mENaE
Other payables H & FIE 9,761 7,415
Amounts due to directors BN ESEIA 14,536 11,559
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT S B A Bl =R 1B 7,887 5,831
Amounts due to related parties FETRAZE N TFIB 687 608
Lease liabilities HESE 395 158
Convertible bonds AR ES 181,356 =
___214622 . 25,571
Total liabilities ES=R i 215,811 195,074
Total equity and liabilities R kA EETE 92,284 255,884

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 13 May 2022 and was signed on its

behalf:

Chen Zhi
[‘ﬁll_'\

Director

EF
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Yu Shi Quan
REFHE

Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note a: Reserve movement of the Company

39 ARANEERERKME
25 (&)

Mizta:

AT BE S

Accumulated Other

deficits reserves

RetE4 HihEE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBEFT ARETF T

As at 1 January 2020 AT TEF—HF—H (117,035) 189,799

Loss for the year FAREE (68,543) -
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 N _E_EFE+_"H=+—H

R—_E_—%—H—H (185,578) 189,799

Loss for the year FEANEE (190,226) -

Conversion of convertible bonds BT ES = (1,383)

At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+"H=+—H (375,804) 188,416

+HERERAT —E-—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 EFFBRER (FA(REIE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION B (58622%F) 553831& . 1 F)
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (RBESNRER) RO (5
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622GE) hEALHRAR
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT TE YK ER)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments A) BEERESITHAENME
The remuneration of every directors and the chief ZRESRESTHRABNHE
executive is set out below: AN
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BE_Z_—H+"H=+—H

IEFE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

HEARE (FaRFARSANEAR) EEMEANEHSAREKHMNE

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other services

Remunerations in connection

paid or with the

Employer's receivable  management

Estimated contributionto inrespectof of the affairs

money a retirement accepting  of the company

Discretionary Housing value of benefit office as or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme director undertaking Total

HES

AMER

FAFE

HIWBAR

HRRES  SRMREN

HftgRs EHER BUBHE EMBBERS
Name #a ik EE BiEED ftREN  AHAREE HUNEIER e & ERHME a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT IN: S AEEFT AEETT AEBFRT AEBFT N AEBTR AEBFT

Executive directors BTES
Mr. Chen Zhi RERE 180 1,620 = = = = = - 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan RERRE 180 720 36 - - " - - 947
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong BEREE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Ms. Chen Min REzt 120 = = = = = = = 120
Independent and BUHTES

non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BELAE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ERBALE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan Sy ik 120 - - - - - - - 120
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020:

40 EFHBRIER (FE(REE

1) (38622F) 553831% . 1 F]
REBEEFFHER) R (B

622GE) REALTHRE

ERHKE) (&)

38

A) ERFREEITHRAENME (B)

HE-S-SE+-A=1—8

IEFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

HEAEE FRZARARANBAE) ESFRHENBRBENRERNME :

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director’s

other services

in connection

Remunerations with the

paid or management

Employer's receivable of the affairs

Estimated contribution to in respect of the
money a retirement  of accepting  company or
Discretionary Housing value of benefit office as its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance other benefits scheme director  undertaking Total
HMESR
BMEE
PN
Ht@ AR
EHFRMHN
BHRERN HESES HAhAR#
H@EAN HENEE BUSHR B8
Name ez ik e BETEAL EREER G E%EE R RERNEHN R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFTT AR%®Tn AREBTn ARBTr ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARBTR ARBTR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chen Zhi RERE 180 1,620 - - - - - - 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan REERE 180 720 36 - - " - - 947
Non-executive directors  JFHITES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong RERLE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Ms. Chen Min BRE %+ 120 - - - - - - - 120
Independent and BUEHRTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BELCEE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, BERARE
Henry 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan BEREE 120 - - - - - - = 120

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

retirement benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

(B) EFEBAKEF

FR EES B WEER WEE

AR EN (CEF

DEE) o

+AHAERBERAT —T_—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HM BRI

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

termination benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties

for making available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There is no other loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and entities connected with all directors
of the Company as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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40 EFHBRIER (FE(REE
B1) (35622F) 553831% . 1 F]
REBEEFFHER) R (B
622GE) hEXE LHHRRR
ERHKE) (&)

(C)

(O)

(E)

(F)

EFRILEREER
FROBEEEE WEEHR E
FARLLERREEN (T FF !
) o
MiRMERRBRAB=HZM

LB

REE_S_—F+ZB=+—
BLEFE > ARGHMEMBEHES
REEEAE=AZHTRE (CZS

“EFE I HE) o

BRAUES - RZEEFEH
HEANBERRZEESHRME
ERASHEANER -EEM
REMIZZHER
R-BE_—F+"_B=+—H'#
BEMUES ZARFMEES
EHEABRBERRBMBE
ENHEERAT T ANEME
M EERREMZZRZH (ZF
—EFEIE) -

EENRS ZHAEGHINE
K#Em

B 5 7R 805 A 17 B ) 3 R AE AT
AAARMAEBERTILMA
NEEFHEABEERE KRR
HHEARR S  ZHHEGHTFE
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